
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 7, 2022 

 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET 
1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. FY2021-22 Financial Update (Finance)
b. Golf Cart Fleet Proposal (Golf)
c. NPO Discussion –Workers Compensation Waivers (City Manager)

4. NEW BUSINESS
d. MCPD Annual Report (Community Relations Director)
e. GYC Annual Report (Community Relations Director)
f. Panhandling Policy Discussion (Police)
g. Golf Course Committee Dissolution Discussion (City Manager)
h. Council Meeting Dates for 2023 (City Clerk)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Rev. Dr. Noé Juarez, First Presbyterian Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of October 17, 2022

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Employee Performance Awards 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
C. Contiguous Annexation Request– Magnolia Grove Located on the east and west side of Eleventh St.

between Norwood Ave. and Englewood Dr. (Planning) 
D. Z-20-22 The Fields at New Hope (Residential 16 to Conditional Residential 12) – East side of W. New

Hope Rd. at its intersection with Cuyler Best Rd. (Planning) 
E. Z-21-22 Lane Farms, Inc. (Residential 20 Agriculture to General Business) – North side of Belfast Rd.

west of US 117 (Future (I-795) (Planning)
F. Z-22-22 Caviness & Cates (Residential-16 to Residential-6CZ) – N. Oak Forest Rd. between Central

Heights Rd. and Gateway Dr. (Planning) 
G. UDO-1-22 Tattoo Parlors – Central Business District (Special Use) (Planning)

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
H. Approve Facility Use Lease for North State Communications Advanced Services, LLC (Information

Technology) 
I. Resolution to Accept State of NC Grant (Ash Street Sidewalk) (Assistant City Manager)
J. Resolution to Accept State of NC Grant (Parks and Recreation) (Assistant City Manager/Parks and

Recreation)  
K. Intent to Purchase using Procurement Exception (Public Utilities)
L. Mutual Aid Agreement Renewal (Fire)
M. City of Goldsboro/Downtown Goldsboro 2022 Downtown Lights Up! – Temporary Street Closure

(Police) 
N. SU-12-22 Fourplex (Quadplex) – North side of Wayne Ave located on the block between Sycamore St.

and Isler St. (Planning) 

 - Public Hearing To Be Continued to 12/5 Meeting



2 

O. Non-Contiguous Annexation Petition – Harry and Mollie, LLC. Located on the north side of N.C. 
Secondary Road No. 1758 off W. US Hwy. 70 between N. Oak Forest Rd. and E. Ash St. Ext. (Planning)  

P. Goldsboro’s 175th Anniversary Resolution (Mayor)  
 

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION  
 

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS  
Q. Veterans Day Proclamation 
R. Small Business Saturday Proclamation  
S. Lung Cancer Awareness Month Proclamation 

 

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS  
 

XIII. CLOSED SESSION 
 

XIV. ADJOURN 



FY2021-22 FINANCIAL UPDATE

Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director

November 7, 2022

w.s. item a



General Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

2

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr over 

Prior Year
Taxes 18,009,270$             17,280,497$        728,774$              
Sales Tax 11,312,744                10,643,638          669,106                
Refuse 3,840,460                  3,847,884            (7,425)                   
Shared Services 3,207,840                  3,046,957            160,883                
Utility Franchise 2,621,684                  2,662,169            (40,485)                 
Other Federal & State Rev. 1,919,146                  1,703,286            215,860                
Debt 3,268,981                  -                         3,268,981            
Powell Bill 1,024,644                  868,303                156,342                
Golf 634,191                      601,863                32,327                  
Permits 417,336                      381,515                35,821                  
Paramount 446,305                      164,707                281,598                
Interest 13,608                        6,718                     6,890                     
Other Revenues 1,335,048                  1,480,397            (145,349)               
Total 48,051,257$             42,687,934$        5,363,323$          



General Fund Collections
FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

3

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections % of Budget

Taxes 17,835,244$           18,009,270$           100.98%
Licenses & Permits 378,450                   417,336                    110.28%
Revenues Other Agencies:

Local Option Tax 9,997,261                11,312,744              113.16%
Utility Franchise Tax 2,871,676                2,621,684                91.29%
ABC Revenues 95,000                      445,060                    468.48%
Beer & Wine Taxes 149,770                   135,558                    90.51%
Powell Bill 830,800                   1,024,644                123.33%
Other Agency Revenues 3,283,656                1,338,528                40.76%

Service Fees from UF 3,207,840                3,207,840                100.00%
Charges for Services 5,091,718                5,562,713                109.25%
Capital Returns 3,484,458                3,485,677                100.03%
Other Revenue 166,601                   490,202                    294.24%
Fund Balance Appropriated 156,633                   -                             0.00%
Total General Fund Revenues 47,549,107             48,051,257              101.06%



Stormwater Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

and
Budget to Actual FY2021-22

4

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Stormwater Fee 1,575,000$                1,621,116$             102.93%
Other Revenues 268,751                     280,716                   104.45%
Appropriated Fund Balance 640,000                     -                                0.00%
Stormwater Fund Totals 2,483,751$               1,901,832$            76.57%

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr 

over Prior Year
Stormwater Fee $1,621,116 $1,596,299 $24,817
Loan Proceeds 267,551           -                         $267,551
Other Revenues 13,165              9,634                $3,531
Total $1,901,832 $1,605,933 $295,899



Utility Fund – Collections
Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

5

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr) 

over Prior Year
Current Sewer 9,266,384$              9,654,752$           (388,369)$            
Current Water 7,570,213                7,685,150             (114,937)              
Other Charges for Services 1,506,861                1,421,628             85,233                 
Transfers In (FEMA related) 292,949                   1,388,182             (1,095,233)           
Miscellaneous 774,987                   722,105                52,882                 
Late Payment Fees 399,065                   332,549                66,516                 
Other Federal & State Revenue 250,125                   115,686                134,439               
Other Capital Returns 115,000                   72,562                  42,438                 
Compost Fees 50,861                     62,718                  (11,857)                
Tap Fees 47,914                     35,150                  12,764                 
Investment Earnings 16,330                     6,584                    9,746                   
Other Revenues -                           
Total 20,290,689$       21,497,067$    (1,206,379)$     



Utility Fund Collections
FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

6

Adjusted Actual YTD %
Budget Collections Collections

Charges for Services:
Current Water Charges 7,321,707$           7,570,213$           103.39%
UF-SJAFB 1,226,771             1,444,079             117.71%
Current Sewer Charges 8,823,652             9,266,384             105.02%
Late Payment/Svc. Fees 326,000                401,632                123.20%
Applied Deposits 127,000                49,322                  38.84%
Reconnections Fees 6,700                    9,199                    137.30%
Water/Sewer Taps 31,000                  47,914                  154.56%
Compost Revenues 51,000                  50,861                  99.73%
BFP Fees/Insufficient Ck Penalty 2,000                    1,694                    84.69%

Total Charges 17,915,830$         18,841,298$         105.17%

Capital Returns & Misc. Revenue
Investment Earnings 8,000$                  16,330$                204.13%
Other Misc. Revenue 59,872                  114,998                192.07%

Total Capital Returns 67,872$                131,328$              193.49%
Other Revenues 3,356,532             1,318,061             39.27%
Appropriated Fund Balance 397,761                -                             0.00%
Utility Fund Revenue Totals 21,737,995$         20,290,688$         93.34%



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections 

Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)

7

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Incr/(Decr) 

over Prior Year
Downtown MSD
Taxes 97,883$              94,941$           2,942$              
Investment Earnings 127                     60                    67                     
Other Revenues
Total 98,010$              95,001$           3,009$              

Occupancy Tax
Occupancy Tax Collections 937,143$            859,799$         77,344$            
Wayne Co. Reimbursement per agreement 170,797              174,376           (3,579)               
Investment Earnings/Misc. Revenues 561                     356                  205                   
Other Revenues 7,823                  8,923               (1,100)               
Total 1,116,324$         1,043,454$      72,870$            



Downtown MSD & 
Occupancy Tax Collections

FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual

8

Adjusted Actual YTD%
Budget Collections Collections

Downtown MSD
Taxes 95,174$              97,883$           102.85%
Investments/Misc. -                      127                  -
      Total 95,174$              98,010$           102.98%

Occupancy Tax
Occupancy Tax - Civic Ctr. 686,463$            749,849$         109.23%
Occupancy Tax - T & T 183,428              187,295           102.11%
County of Wayne Occ Tx 175,975              170,797           97.06%
Other Revenues 35,931                8,384               23.33%
Appropriated Fund Balance 150,000              -                   0.00%
      Total 1,231,797$         1,116,324$      90.63%



Actual Collections
Comparison Actual Current & Prior (unaudited)

9

FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21

Incr/(Decr) 
over Prior 

Year

General Fund 48,051,257$    42,687,934$    5,363,323$   

Utility Fund 20,290,688       21,497,066       (1,206,378)    

Downtown Development 98,010               95,001               3,009              

Occupancy Tax 1,116,324         1,043,454         72,870           
-                  

Stormwater Fund 1,901,832         1,605,933         295,899         

Total 71,458,111$    66,929,388$    4,528,723$   



Summary –
FY2021-22 Budget to Actual Expenditures

10

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
General Fund 47,549,107$             40,445,335$        7,103,772$          
Utility Fund 21,737,995                14,926,001          6,811,994            
Stormwater Fund 2,483,751                  1,857,437            626,314                
Downtown MSD Fund 95,174                        73,625                  21,549                  
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,231,797                  1,126,972            104,825                
Total 73,097,824$             58,429,370$        14,668,454$        



Fund Balance Appropriations
FY 2021-22

11

General Fund $ 156,633
PO rollover

Utility Fund $ 397,761
PO rollover, AIA & MRFS grants $6K

Downtown MSD $            0    
None

Occupancy Tax Fund $  150,000
Musco Lighting $110K & Advertising $40K

Stormwater Fund $  640,000
Stormwater Project-Assessment (CDM) _________

Total $1,344,394



FY2021-22 Net Operating Results
(Modified Accrual - unaudited)

12

Budget Actual
Under/(Over) 

Budget
General Fund

Revenues 47,549,107$         48,051,257$         (502,150)$              
Expenditures 47,549,107            40,445,335            7,103,772              

General Fund - Net -$                        7,605,922$            7,605,922$            
Utility Fund

Revenues 21,737,995$         20,290,689$         1,447,307$            
Expenditures 21,737,995            14,926,001            6,811,994              

Utility Fund - Net 0$                           5,364,688$            5,364,688$            
Stormwater Fund

Revenues 2,483,751$            1,901,832$            581,919$               
Expenditures 2,483,751              1,857,437              626,314                 

Stormwater Fund - Net -$                        44,395$                 44,395$                 
Downtown MSD Fund

Revenues 95,174$                 98,010$                 (2,836)$                  
Expenditures 95,174                   73,625                   21,549                   

Downtown MSD Fund - Net -$                        24,385$                 24,385$                 
Occupancy Tax Fund

Revenues 1,231,797$            1,116,324$            115,472$               
Expenditures 1,231,797              1,126,972              104,825                 

Occupancy Tax Fund - Net -$                        (10,647)$                (10,647)$                

Total - Net Change all Funds 0$                           13,028,743$         13,028,742$         



Questions? 



GOLDSBORO GOLF COURSE & 
EVENT CENTER
1501-B South Slocumb St

Goldsboro, NC 27530
919-735-0411

w.s. item b



GOLF CART FLEET PROPOSAL



WHAT WE HAVE DONE SO FAR 

FY 20/21
$93,757.25

FY 21/22
$122,600.51

FY 22/23 Forecast
$77,000

$603,068.28 
$634,190.54 

607000

$509,311.03 511590.03
530000

Revenue Expenditures



THE EFFECT OF GOLF CART FEES ON REVENUE

Cart
Fe…

Total
Re…

$0.00

$200,000.00

$400,000.00

$600,000.00

$800,000.00

FY 18/19
43%

FY 19/20
43%

FY 20/21
39%

FY 21/22
27%

$209,000.00 $240,000.00 $233,000.00 $169,000.00

$481,998.00
$560,571.00 $603,068.00 $634,190.00

Goldsboro Golf  Course

Cart Fee
Revenue

Total
Revenue

OVER THE PAST 4 YEARS, 
CART FEES MAKE UP 
38% OF GGC’S 
REVENUE 



ACT NOW
• USED CARTS RESALE VALUE IS AT AN ALL-TIME HIGH

• UTILIZING CURRENT TECHNOLOGY TO SAVE MONEY

• COST MAINTAINING CURRENT FLEET WILL INCREASE

• CARTS WILL CONTINUE TO LOSE VALUE

• MAXIMIZING DAILY PLAY AND TOURNAMENT ROUNDS

• STAYING COMPETITIVE

• LEAD TIME FOR ORDER 



CURRENT DILEMMA
• WE HAVE ALREADY LOST $400 OFF THE PREVIOUSLY 

QUOTED TRADE VALUE.

• THE VALUE WILL CONTINUE TO LESSEN IF WE DELAY.

• EZGO IS OFFERING THE BEST TRADE VALUE FOR OUR 

GOLF CARTS. 



OPTIONS
RXV GAS.. Cash Purchase

Unit Price: $6538.67
Fleet Price: $326,933.42
Trade Value: $165,000 ($3,300 ea.)
City’s Cost: $161,993.42

RXV GAS.. 48 Month Lease Option

Unit Price: $77.91 after trade
Trade Value: $165,000 ($3,300 ea.)
City’s Cost: $186,984 ($3,895.50 per month)

RXV ELITE.. Cash Purchase

Unit Price: $8311.36
Fleet Price: $415,568.14
Trade Value: $165,000 ($3,300 ea.)
City’s Cost: $250,568.14

RXV ELITE.. 60 Month Lease Option

Unit Price: $99.81 after trade
Trade Value: $165,000 ($3,300 ea.)
City’s Cost: $299,430 ($4,990.50 per month)



CURRENT FLEET

• WE OWN 50 GAS POWERED TXT EZGO CARTS. 

• ALL HAVE SOME FORM OF EXTENSIVE WEAR AND TEAR

• 70% OF THE TIRES NEED TO BE REPLACED

• ENGINE SEALS ON 4 OR MORE CARTS

• CURRENTLY NEED TO REBUILD 2 ENGINES



CURRENT FLEET



PURCHASE 50 LITHIUM ELECTRIC GOLF CARTS

WHY?
• A gas vehicle costs approximately $0.90 per round in fuel costs. A 

lithium vehicle costs approximately $0.09 per round in electricity 
costs. As an example, if a course does 20,000 rounds/year, a gas 
fleet will cost approximately $1,500/month in fuel costs vs a 
lithium fleet costing the club approximately $150/month in 
electricity costs. 

DEPT. RECOMMENDATION 



SAMSUNG LITHIUM: PROVEN RESULTS

5 Year WarrantyZero Maintenance Batteries

Consistent Performance

Energy Efficiency

Smart BatteriesTurf Protection Eco Friendly

59%

52%

MORE 
EFFICIENT
VS. CLUB CAR

MORE 
EFFICIENT
VS. YAMAHA



GOLDSBORO GOLF COURSE FLEET CARS

• Quantity: 50

• Color: Platinum

• Canopy: Black

• Standard Seat: Grey

• Silver Spoke (Hub Caps)

• 2 Sand Bottles

• Split Windshield

• USB Port

• Message Holder

• Pace 7” EX GPS (optional)



ADDITIONAL NEEDS
• UPGRADE CART SHED TO SUPPORT ELECTRIC GOLF CARTS. 

ESTIMATED COST $15K-18K

(CONVERTING TO LITHIUM WILL SAVE THE CITY NORTH OF $64K OVER 

A 4-YEAR PERIOD)



THANK YOU

5/17/2021



 

SUPPORTING CALCULATIONS TO HELP WEIGH THE LITHIUM VS GAS CARTS 

 

• Just as before, the lithium fleet is more expensive than the gas fleet. That said I want to provide 

you with some numbers to justify lithium vs gas.  

o **All these calculations are based on 25,000 rounds of golf per year. 

o It costs about 90 cents in fuel for a gas car to go 18 holes. 90 cents x 25,000 rounds a 

year = $23,750 in yearly fuel costs. (This is not counting the commuting back and forth 

to the driving range) 

o It costs about 9 cents in electricity cost for a lithium car to go 18 holes. 9 cents x 25,000 

rounds a year = $2,250 in yearly electrical costs. 

o $23,750 - $2,250 = $21,500 to operate a lithium fleet vs a gas fleet yearly. 

o The difference to purchase a gas fleet vs a lithium fleet is $17,613.32 per year (based on 

using the cars for 5 years). 

o $21,500 - $17,613.32 = $3,886.68 in yearly savings. 

o $3,886.68 x 5 years = $19,433.40. 

• Those figures also do not take into consideration the following lithium benefits:  

o VERY IMPORTANT: I would highly anticipate that a lithium vehicles trade value in 5 

years will be substantially higher than gas cars. This is very important because it will 

provide the club with a higher trade value and better equity position on the next lease.  

▪ For reference, the trade value on a 2019 lithium car is currently $1,050 more 

than your 2019 gas cars. I would highly anticipate that to be the case 5 years 

from now as well. 

o Zero maintenance lithium batteries. 

o The automatic braking system on the lithium cars vs a manual locking brake on a gas car. 

o Lithium vehicles are also much more eco-friendly than gas vehicles with zero emissions. 



Agency

NPO 
Agreement

990 COI
Charitable Solicitation 

License 
Comments

Arts Council * * √ * Need Agreement, 2021 tax returns, & CSL

Boys & Girls Club √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

Communities in Schools √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

HGDC Community Crisis Ctr. √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

Literacy Connections √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

Rebuilding Broken Places √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

WAGES √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

W.A.T.C.H. √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

W.I.S.H. * √ * * Need Agreement, COI & WC (WC), CSL

Wayne County Museum √ √ √ √ Need WC waived 

4 Day Movement √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

Freedom Fam Youth Uhuru * √ √ √ Need Agreement, WC waived

MLFL * √ √ * Need Agreement, WC waived, CSL

Passionate Beginnings Resource Center √ √ √ √ Need WC waived

Vision of David √ √ √ * Need WC waived, CSL

Warm Body Warm Soul Help Center * √ * √ Need Agreement, COI, WC waived

Wayne Pregnancy Center/Cry Freedom Missions √ √ √ √ EXECUTED

Waynesborough Model RR Club Inc. 
√ √ * * Need COI, WC, CSL

√ = documents submitted and approved
* = documents not submitted or further information requested

EXECUTED = Agreement has been executed
Pending reguirements
Not able to provide requested documents at this time

Updated 11-7-22 TMS

FY 2022-23 Executed Agency Requests



Agency Requests FY22-23 Manager Recommended 5/XX/22

Agency

 FY 21-22 
Adopted 

Allocation 

 FY 22-23 
Requested              

 Mayor Ham 
Rec.  

 MPT 
Polack Rec. 

 CW Jones  
Rec. 

 CM 
Broadaway 

Rec.  

 CW 
Matthews 

Rec. 

 CM Gaylor 
Rec.  

Councilmember 
Recommended 

Allocations 

Arts Council 24,500            35,000             23,000            25,000         7,000        24,500          8,889            24,990         18,896                    
Boys & Girls Club 15,500            15,000             13,000            12,000         14,000      17,500          8,889            15,810         13,533                    
Communities in Schools 15,500            20,000             18,000            8,000           12,000      15,500          8,889            15,810         13,033                    
HGDC Community Crisis Ctr. 6,500              25,000             6,500              5,000           7,000        8,500            8,889            6,630           7,086                      
Literacy Connections 11,000            20,000             13,000            8,000           10,000      6,500            8,889            11,220         9,601                      
Rebuilding Broken Places 15,500            25,000             15,000            17,000         14,000      11,000          8,889            15,810         13,616                    
WAGES -                  20,000             6,000              10,000         12,000      14,000          8,889            10,000         10,148                    
W.A.T.C.H. -                  25,000             20,000            15,000         12,000      24,000          8,889            10,000         14,981                    
W.I.S.H. 11,000            15,000             13,000            11,000         12,000      13,000          8,889            11,220         11,518                    
Wayne County Museum 15,500            16,500             15,500            14,000         13,000      15,500          8,889            15,810         13,783                    

4 Day Movement -                  21,150             13,000            5,000           7,000        6,000            8,889            4,500           7,398                      
Freedom Fam Youth Uhuru -                  10,000             -                  7,000           6,000        1,000            8,889            -               3,815                      
MLFL -                  40,000             1,000              5,000           5,000        1,000            8,889            4,500           4,231                      
Passionate Beginnings Resource Center -                  10,000             1,000              3,000           5,000        1,000            8,889            4,500           3,898                      
Vision of David -                  71,000             1,000              5,000           5,000        -                8,889            4,500           4,065                      
Warm Body Warm Soul Help Center -                  15,000             1,000              5,000           11,000      1,000            8,889            4,500           5,231                      
Wayne Pregnancy Center/Cry Freedom Missions -                  65,000             -                  5,000           -            -                8,889            -               2,315                      
Waynesborough Model RR Club Inc. -                  20,000             -                  -              -            -                8,889            -               1,481                      

TOTALS 115,000          468,650           160,000          160,000       152,000    160,000        160,000        159,800       158,633                  

FY 2022-23 Agency Requests

New Request for FY22-23

Agency Requests FY23_8-15-22 Avg FY22-23 8/15/2022 4:36 PM



MCPD

MAYOR’S COMMITTEE FOR 
PERSON’S WITH 

DISABILITIES

w.s. item d



WHAT IS THE MCPD?
A Committee that serves 
to promote equal 
opportunity for people 
with disabilities in all 
aspects of society 
including employment, 
housing, transportation, 
recreation, and education. 



WHAT DOES 
THE MCPD DO?

• Hal K. Plonk Disability 
Awareness Walk

• Annual Awards 
Ceremony

• Education
• Volunteer
• Advocate



WE EDUCATE

• The MCPD takes every opportunity 
available to educate the public on 
various topics concerning or related to 
disability awareness.

• We have included education material in 
the City of Goldsboro’s Newsletter

• Spoken at many civic group meetings 
such as the New Hope Ruritan Club, 
Sunrise Kiwanis and the Rotary Club of 
Goldsboro-Three Eagles.



We Advocate

• The MCPD makes an effort to address 
needs in the community on the 
behalf of it’s disable citizens.

• We have made strives to make the 
community a more accessible place 
for disabled citizens.

• Meeting with several businesses that 
resulted in them including  safer and 
more accessible entries. 



Hal K. Plonk Disability 
Walk
• The MCPD hosts the annual Hal K. 

Plonk Disability Awareness Walk to 
raise awareness, advocate, and 
celebrate those that are living with 
disabilities. 

• The walk is the MCPD’s largest event; 
engaging hundreds of attendees and 
volunteers!



MCPD Annual Awards

• The MCPD Annual Awards recognizes 
community nominated persons and 
businesses that have either overcome 
their disabilities or have gone the 
extra mile to serve or work with 
people with disabilities. 

• Categories include: The Mayor’s 
Trophy, Employee of the Year, 
Employer of the Year, Committee 
Member of the year and Most 
Accessible Business. 



Making Strides for 
Inclusivity 
• The MCPD has spearheaded several 

fundraising initiatives to fund various 
activities throughout the year and future 
projects.

• The largest being a continuous 
campaign/fundraising to fund an inclusive 
playground for the community. 



MCPD
The Mayor’s Committee for 
Person’s With Disabilities 

• Meetings are on the 3rd Thursday of 
Every Month

• 12:00pm-1:00pm

• City Hall-Large Conference Room 

• Liaison -Community Relations



GOLDSBORO MAYOR’S YOUTH COUNCIL

w.s. item e



GYC MEMBERSHIP
2022-2023

• 25 MEMBERS

• Nine (9) high schools throughout 
the county are represented.

• Meeting time is 5pm-6pm on the 
1st Wednesday of the month.  

• Meetings include discussions of 
GYC business and Teambuilding 
activities. Speakers are 
occasionally invited to some 
meetings to speak on topics 
relevant to youth.  

• Community Relations 
Department acts as Advisor.



EXECUTIVE BOARD

Chair : Ean Wade (Wayne Prep Academy)

Vice-Chair: Andrew Reynolds (Wayne 
Christian School)

Secretary (vacant)

Parliamentarian: Brendon Zheng (Wayne 
School of Engineering)



NOVEMBER 2021
HOSTED BY:
City of Goldsboro 
Downtown Development





GIFT WRAPPING @ 

Fundraising



MLK 2022 AT PARAMOUNT 
THEATRE January 2022



MLK 2022 AT PARAMOUNT 
THEATRE January 2022



BAGS FOR BLANKETS
LAUNCHED 2021



CAREER DAY 
REP. JOHN BELL April 2022



SOFTBALL TOURNAMENT @ 
SJAFB March 26, 2022







TASTE OF WAYNE 2022



YOUTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY
N.C. GENERAL ASSEMBLY



SPRING CONVENTION   
PULLEN PARK

APRIL 2022  



GYC 2022 GRADUATES

AHMAD

ALEXIS

DESTINY

ISAAC

LARESSIA

KATIE

VISMITHA

ROHAN



GYC LOCAL…



STAY TUNED TO WHAT 
WE’RE DOING!

Search for…

GYC (Mayor’s Youth 
Council of Goldsboro)



HOMELESS & PANHANDLING
Discussion

Goldsboro Police Department

November 7, 2022

w.s. item f



Homeless Locations
• Homeless Encampments

2600-2700 block of Royall Avenue 2400 block of Royall Avenue

11/7/2022 2



2600-2700 Royall Avenue Encampment

11/7/2022 3



2600-2700 Royall Avenue Encampment

11/7/2022 4



2400 Royall Avenue Encampment

11/7/2022 5



Crime Mapping
• Homeless & Crime Analysis 

Crime reports: 
Trespassing
Larceny
B&E Motor Vehicles
Drug Activity (use and sales)
Littering & Hazardous Waste
Aggressive Panhandling

11/7/2022 6



Homeless & Police Response
• Obtain Trespass Agreements with all property owners.

• Posting / Notification of “Trespassing” by property owners with notice to remove 
property.
– During this period Goldsboro Police Department’s Homeless Community Coordinator will:

• Work to identify homeless individuals within the encampments
• Provide community resource information and point of contacts

• After the notification period all violators will be charged by citation and/or arrest.

11/7/2022 7



Trespass Agreements

11/7/2022 8

Currently, three property owners of vacant 
lots and three businesses have agreements 
on file with GPD.



Challenges for Homeless
• Transitional Housing (most range $130 to $200 per week)

• Transportation for employment and appointments

• Employment (lack of life skills or transportation)

• Mental Health & Substance Abuse Resources

11/7/2022 9



Panhandling Ordinance
• Current City Ordinance
§ 96.12 AGGRESSIVE PANHANDLING PROHIBITED ON CITY STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES.
(A) Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a 
different meaning.

(1) The words "panhandling" or "begging" are used interchangeably and mean any aggressive language or such other aggressive 
act, a purpose of which is to obtain a contribution of money or goods for the principal benefit of the person making the solicitation.

(2) The word "aggressive" refers to the approaching and following of a person, any physical contact with another person, the use of 
abusive language toward another person, or any word or act which intimidates or attempts to intimidate another person, a purpose 
of which is to obtain a contribution of money or goods for the principal benefit of the person making the solicitation.

(3) "Public place" and "place open to the public" mean an area generally visible to public view and include streets, sidewalks, 
bridges, alleys, plazas, parks, driveways, parking lots, public transportation, buildings open to the general public including those 
which serve food or drink or provide entertainment, and the doorways or entrances in buildings and their grounds.

11/7/2022 10



Panhandling Ordinance
• Recommended City Ordinance Changes

Current:
§ 96.12 AGGRESSIVE PANHANDLING PROHIBITED ON CITY STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC PLACES.

Recommended:
§ 96.12 PANHANDLING; AGGRESSIVE PANHANDLING, PROHIBITED AREAS AND TIMES.

(A) Definitions. For the purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply unless the context clearly indicates or requires a 
different meaning.

Current:
(1) The words "panhandling" or "begging" are used interchangeably and mean any aggressive language or such other aggressive 
act, a purpose of which is to obtain a contribution of money or goods for the principal benefit of the person making the solicitation.

Recommended:
(1) The words "panhandling" or "begging" are used interchangeably, a purpose of which is to obtain a contribution of money or
goods for the principal benefit of the person making the solicitation.

11/7/2022 11



Panhandling Ordinance
• Recommended City Ordinance Changes

Current:
(2) The word "aggressive" refers to the approaching and following of a person, any physical contact with another person, the use of 
abusive language toward another person, or any word or act which intimidates or attempts to intimidate another person, a purpose
of which is to obtain a contribution of money or goods for the principal benefit of the person making the solicitation.

Recommended: 
(2) It shall be unlawful for any person to panhandle or beg “aggressively” as defined in § 96.12 within the City of Goldsboro, a 
purpose of which is to obtain a contribution of money or goods for the principal benefit of the person making the solicitation. The 
word "aggressive" refers to:
• Continuing to solicit in close proximity to the individual addressed after the person to whom the solicitation is directed has made 

a negative response, either verbally, by physical sign, by attempting to leave the presence of the person soliciting, or by other 
negative indication

• Any physical contact with another person without consent
• By blocking the path of a person being solicited or blocking the entrance or exit to any building or vehicle
• By or with the use of any abusive language, word, gesture or act intended to cause a reasonable person to be fearful of the 

solicitor or feel compelled to accede to the solicitation;

11/7/2022 12



Panhandling Ordinance
• Recommended City Ordinance Changes

Current:
(3) "Public place" and "place open to the public" mean an area generally visible to public view and include streets, sidewalks, 
bridges, alleys, plazas, parks, driveways, parking lots, public transportation, buildings open to the general public including those 
which serve food or drink or provide entertainment, and the doorways or entrances in buildings and their grounds.

Recommended:
(3) It shall be unlawful for any type of panhandling or begging within the “Prohibited areas" and times, a purpose of which is to 
obtain a contribution of money or goods for the principal benefit of the person making the solicitation.
• Within 100 feet of any financial institution and/or automated teller machine
• Within 100 feet of any bus stop, train station, or taxi stand
• Within 100 feet of any commercial establishment which is open for business
• Within 100 feet of any outdoor dining area during operation
• Within DOT or city Right-of-Ways
• Between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

11/7/2022 13



Panhandling Ordinance
• Recommended City Ordinance Changes

Recommended Addition to Ordinance:
(4) It shall be unlawful for any person to panhandle or beg as defined in § 96.12 within the City of Goldsboro without first obtaining a 
“Panhandler’s Permit” from the Chief of Police or designee. 

11/7/2022 14

Panhandler’s Permit
- Allow panhandlers to be notified of ordinance
- Track violations of ordinance and repeat offenders
- Public safety

Permit Application Requirements
- Name and DOB
- Address or location staying
- Contact number or contact person
- Photo ID; if applicant does not have photo ID, GPD 
Homeless Community Coordinator may assist 
applicant with obtaining an ID.



Homeless & Panhandling Discussion

Questions

11/7/2022 15



PROPOSED 
2023 Goldsboro City Council Meeting Dates 
*Work Session-5:00 p.m. --- Council Meeting-7:00 p.m.

Monday, January 9 
Monday, January 23 
(2nd and 4th Monday of the month due to Holidays) 

Monday, February 6 
(One meeting in February due to Council Retreat) 

Monday, March 6 
Monday, March 20 

Monday, April 3 
Monday, April 17 

Monday, May 1 
Monday, May 15 

Monday, June 5 
Tuesday, June 20 (Monday, June 19th is a holiday – Juneteenth) 

Monday, July 17   
(One meeting in July due to the Holiday) 

Monday, August 7 
Monday, August 21 

Tuesday, September 5 (Monday, September 4th is a holiday – Labor Day) 
Monday, September 18 

Monday, October 2 
Monday, October 16 

Monday, November 6 
Monday, November 20 

Monday, December 4 
Monday, December 18 

Proposed Retreat Dates 2022 
February 20 and 21 (Monday and Tuesday) or February 22 and 23 (Wednesday and Thursday) 

**Meeting dates and/or times are subject to change with proper notice. 

w.s. item h



1 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
OCTOBER 17, 2022 

WORK SESSION 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met on October 17, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. in Council 
Chambers, City Hall, 214 North Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530. 

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts  

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

Adoption of the Agenda.  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to adopt the agenda. The motion was seconded 
by seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.  

Old Business. 
Herman Park Center Update. Josh Price and Scott Wynne with TA Loving and Janessa Van Deen with H&H 

Architecture shared the following presentation: 

Item A



2 
 

 

 
 
Mayor Ham shared that Council discussed the project to replace the current Herman Park Center, which is old and 

dilapidated in 2019, but the project did not go forward due to funding issues. He shared this presentation was strictly 
informational and he has discussed the project with legislators regarding funding for the project. Council discussed the 
project.    

 
NC Freedom Festival. Doug McGrath with North Carolina Freedom Fest presented the following:  

 

   

 
 



3 
 

 

 

 
 
Council discussed the NC Freedom Fest and gave consensus to support the event in 2023.  

 
North End Park Grant. Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation Director shared the following presentation:   
 

 

 

 

 



4 
 

          

      

  

  

  
 
Ms. Brown shared that the proposal only includes playground equipment. Council discussed the playground surfacing, 
installation, and wheelchair swings. City Manager Salmon shared any matching funds would have to come from 
contingency fund or fund balance.  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to apply for a grant of $300,000. The motion 
was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack. After discussion, the motion was withdrawn by Councilman Broadaway.  
 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion that we ask Ms. Brown to submit an application for this grant with a total city 
incumbrance not to exceed $60,000. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and unanimously approved. 

 
HOME-ARP Funding NPO Presentations. Mayor Ham introduced the non-profit agencies, and each presenter 

was given ten minutes to present. Greene Lamp declined to present.  
 
WAGES-Presented by Patricia Bier 

 



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Council discussed WAGES services and homelessness. 
 
 
 



6 
 

MLFL – Presented by David Simmons, Anthony Slater and Thomas Rice 

  

 

 
 
Council discussed the proposal.  
 
4 Day Movement- Presented by DJ Coles with Ruth Coles and Ashley Horne 

 

 

 

 



7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Mr. Coles shared a video regarding the PORTAL. Council discussed the unhoused.  
 
Nu-Hope Village- Presented by Janice Johnson  

 



8 
 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 



9 
 

 

 

 

 

 
Council discussed the presentation.  
 
Mayor Ham recessed the meeting at 6:55 pm. 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on October 17, 2022. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Taj Polack 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway  
Councilwoman Brandi Matthews  
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV  
Councilman Greg Batts  
 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager  
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Laura Getz, City Clerk  



10 
 

Pastor Joshua Clark with Generation Church provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
  
Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the minutes of the Work Session and 

Regular Meeting of October 3, 2022. The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously passed.   
 

Presentations.  
Resolution Expressing Appreciation For Services Rendered By Michael “Kevin” Pate As An Employee Of 

The City Of Goldsboro For More Than 26 Years. Resolution Adopted. Michael “Kevin” Pate retired on July 1, 2022 as 
a Fleet Maintenance Supervisor with the Public Works Department with the City of Goldsboro with more than 26 years of 
service.  Kevin began his career on July 19, 1995 as a Fleet Mechanic I with the Public Works Department with the City of 
Goldsboro. On December 20, 1995, Kevin was promoted to Fleet Mechanic II with the Public Works Department with the 
City of Goldsboro. On January 2, 1997, Kevin was promoted to Fleet Mechanic III with the Public Works Department with 
the City of Goldsboro. On August 1, 2007, Kevin was reclassified to Senior Fleet Mechanic with the Public Works 
Department with the City of Goldsboro. On March 29, 2017, Kevin was promoted to Fleet Maintenance Supervisor with 
the Public Works Department with the City of Goldsboro, where he served until his retirement. Kevin has proven himself 
to be a dedicated and efficient public servant who has gained the admiration and respect of his fellow workers and the 
citizens of the City of Goldsboro. The Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro are desirous, on behalf of 
themselves, City employees, and the citizens of the City of Goldsboro, of expressing to Michael “Kevin” Pate their deep 
appreciation and gratitude for the service rendered by him to the City over the years and express to Kevin our very best 
wishes for success, happiness, prosperity, and good health in his future endeavors. 

 
This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and shall be in full force and 

effect from and after this 17th day of October, 2022. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Polack to adopt the retirement resolution. The motion was seconded by 

Councilman Batts and unanimously carried.  Council adopted the following entitled Resolution. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-98 “RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION FOR SERVICES RENDERED BY 
MICHAEL “KEVIN” PATE AS AN EMPLOYEE OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO FOR MORE THAN 26 YEARS” 

 
¼ Cent Sales Tax Option Presentation. Joel Gillie, Public Affairs Director with the County of Wayne presented 

the following:   
 

  

  

  



11 
 

  

 
 
Council discussed the proposed tax increase.  
          

Public Hearing.  
SU-12-22 Fourplex (Quadplex) – North side of Wayne Ave located on the block between Sycamore St. and 

Isler St. Public Hearing Held and Findings Adopted. After being properly sworn in, Austin Brinkley, Assistant Planning 
Director, shared the following: Address: 309 Wayne Ave; Parcel #: 2599911158; Property Owner/Applicant: C.A.L.M. 
Properties & Investments, LLC.  The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of a fourplex (multi-
family 3 or more units), located in the Residential 6 (R-6) Zoning District. The Residential 6 district is established to 
accommodate both single and multi-family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature, except 
certain home occupations. Multi-family dwellings shall have 6,000 sq feet of land area for the first unit and an additional 
2,000 square feet for each additional unit.  

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Multi-Family (3 or more units) is permitted only after obtaining a 
Special Use Permit from Goldsboro City Council. 

Frontage: 102 ft.   

Area: 0.29 acres 

Density:  Maximum of 4 units allowed 

Zoning:   Residential 6 (R-6)  

Existing Use:  Vacant 

The City’s Land Use Plan locates this parcel within the High-Density Residential land use designation. This designation 
was given based off of existing residential development patterns, constraints to development, and the location of 
infrastructure. The desired development density for the High-Density Residential land use designation is 8.5 units per acre. 
Residential 6 is a corresponding zoning district for the High-Density Residential designation. 

The proposed 4 units are in harmony with the desired density for the High-Density Residential designation.  

The following items listed below are required to be shown on the formal Site Plan review for this proposed Special Use, if 
approved: 

A fifteen-foot opaque Type B buffer shall be required. 

A minimum of eight parking spaces is required (2 per unit). Administrative modification of 20% granted to allow for this. 
Each unit provides a garage with adequate vehicle parking space as well as providing adequate space in each unit’s 
respective driveway.  

Staff has distributed this proposed special use permit to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air 
Force Base and NCDOT. During this review process Seymour Johnson indicated that they have no comments or concerns. 

The original site plan showed four separate driveways accessing Wayne Ave. Staff requested that this be redesigned to 
minimize the number of access points onto Wayne Ave. The applicant has complied with this request and the revised plan 
shows two access points to serve the units.  

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing.  No one spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  

Council entered into deliberation and voted on each of the four findings listed below in order to determine whether or not 
the Special Use Permit shall be issued. Council shall sign the Order to Approve or Deny, that reflects the results of the 
hearing and deliberation at the November 7, 2022 City Council meeting. 



12 
 

1. Mayor Pro Tem Polack made a motion that the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried.   

2. Councilman Batts made a motion to agree that the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or 
abutting property. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried.   

3. Councilman Broadaway made a motion to agree that the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses 
within the area in which it is located. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously 
carried.  

4. Councilman Gaylor made a motion to agree that the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 
Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  The motion was seconded by Councilwoman Matthews and unanimously carried.   

Public Hearing to Consider an Economic Development Agreement with SunTree Snack Foods, LLC. and 
Wayne County. Public Hearing Held and Resolution Adopted. SunTree Snack Foods, LLC. desires to purchase a 
facility and install certain machinery and equipment in an existing facility located in Goldsboro.    

The City Council of Goldsboro believes the location of new industries and the expansion of existing industries is vital to 
the economic health of Goldsboro and to the welfare of its citizens.  The City Council wishes to encourage such 
development by means of offering incentives to recruit new industries and to aid in expansion of existing industries.  Such 
incentives are predicated on the notion of expanding Goldsboro’s tax base and providing additional jobs for Goldsboro 
citizens that pay wages higher than the current prevailing average hourly wage in the particular industry.  

Pursuant to NC General Statue 158-7.1, a public hearing is being held on a proposal to provide economic incentives to 
SunTree Snack Foods, LLC. totaling $400,000 ($200,000 by the City and $200,000 by the County) over a 10-year period 
based on an incentive agreement with a $10,200,000 capital investment and the creation of at least 94 jobs.  

Following the public hearing and depending on comments received, staff recommended Council consider adopting a 
Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the economic development agreement with SunTree Snack 
Foods, LLC.    

Mayor Ham opened the Public Hearing. No one spoke and the Public Hearing was closed.  

Councilman Batts made a motion to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the economic 
development agreement. The motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Polack and unanimously carried.     

RESOLUTION 2022-99 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE AN 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH SUNTREE SNACK FOODS, LLC” 

Public Comment Period. Mayor Ham opened the Public Comment Period, no one spoke and the Public Comment 
Period was closed.   

Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Tim Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All 
items were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a 
Councilmember so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered 
separately. In that event, the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call 
vote. Mayor Pro Tem Polack moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items F-K, be approved as recommended by the 
City Manager and staff.  The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and a roll call vote resulted in all members 
voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 
 Veterans Day Parade – Temporary Street Closure. Approved. The Annual Veterans Day Parade is a parade to 
Honor all US Military Veterans from all branches of the U.S. Armed Forces for their service.  The parade is organized, 
coordinated, and sponsored by the Wayne County Veterans & Patriots Coalition.   

The street closing request for Friday, November 11, 2022 is as follows: 

Parade Route:  South on Center Street beginning at Ash Street to Pine Street; going around the traffic circle heading north 
on Center Street back to Ash Street, ending at Ash Street. 

Staging Areas (streets closed for staging): N. Center Street - between Ash and Holly Street; Oak Street - between James 
and William Street; Vine Street - between James and William Street; Beech Street - between Center and William Street. 

Additional Closures recommended by the Police Department to manage traffic flow will encompass:   James Street - 
between Oak and Ash Street; Ash Street - between James and John Street; Mulberry Street - between James and John 
Street; Walnut Street - between James and John Street; Chestnut Street - between James and John Street; Spruce Street - 
between James and John Street; Pine Street - between James and John Street; and Center Street at Elm Street.   

Parking Restrictions:  No parallel parking on Center Street from Pine Street to Ash Street. 

The time requested for the street closing is from 7:00am to 3:00pm.  Police have indicated that traffic will be restricted from 
7:00am until 10:30am and all traffic stopped at 10:30am.  The actual parade will begin at 11:00am and end at approximately 
12:30pm. 

As with all downtown events, affected city departments will be contacted and the following concerns are to be addressed:  

1. All intersections remain open for Police Department traffic control.  

2. A 14-foot fire lane is to be maintained to provide access for fire and emergency vehicles.  



13 
 

3. All activities, change in plans, etc., will be coordinated with the Police Department.  

4. The Police and Fire Departments and Public Works Departments are to be involved in the logistical aspects of 
the Event. 

It was recommended that Council grant the requested temporary street closures of the sections of Pine Street, Spruce Street, 
Center Street, Walnut Street, John Street, Mulberry Street, Ash Street, James Street, Chestnut Street, Oak Street, Vine Street, 
and Beech Street for the Veterans Day Parade route and staging area from 7:00am to 3:00pm on Friday, November 11, 2022, 
as stated above. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

US Dept. Of Justice: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Formula Program:  Local 
Solicitation. Resolution Adopted. The Goldsboro Police Department was notified that Federal grant funds are available 
from the 2022 Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG).  This is the same grant that was applied for in 2020.  

The total amount of the grant is $23,574.00. The grant requires the application be submitted to the City Council for review 
only, no fewer than 30 days prior to the application submission, or before the grant will be awarded.  

The City of Goldsboro is not a certified disparate area and will be conducting this grant without a sub-grantee. All of the 
items requested are not in a regular budget and are not part of any other grant. This is a stand-alone grant and does not require 
any matching funds from the city. 

The Goldsboro Police Department wishes to purchase patrol pistols, informational technology equipment, and an Eye Detect 
instrument with the 2022 JAG Award.   

It was recommended that the following entitled resolution be adopted supporting the Police Department’s application for the 
grant. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-100 “A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2022 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE 
ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) APPLICATION” 
 
 Goldsboro City Council Conflicts of Interest Policy. Policy Adopted. Per the City’s Procurement Policy, the 
City Council must sign a Conflicts of Interest Policy annually. The City of Goldsboro does have a Code of Ethics Policy in 
place for Council, and a Conflicts of Interest Policy in place for employees, but there is not currently a Conflicts of Interest 
Policy in place for the Goldsboro City Council.  
 
The purpose of the Conflicts of Interest Policy is for Councilmembers to annually review and acknowledge by signature 
that they are to protect the interest of the City of Goldsboro as a public body charged with the oversight of federal, state, 
and/or local funds, when entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of a City Council 
member or a possible excess benefit transaction. 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the Goldsboro City Council Conflicts of Interest Policy. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 
 

City of Goldsboro and Goldsboro-Wayne Transportation Authority (GWTA) Funding Agreement. 
Resolution Adopted.  The GWTA has provided public transportation services in Goldsboro since 2000.  The City FY22-
23 appropriation for GWTA was approved at the June 20, 2022 Council meeting in the amount of $303,000. City staff 
worked with the GWTA staff to develop the subject agreement which includes GWTA insurance and audit requirements.  
 
GWTA agrees to provide public transportation services under the attached agreement to residents of Goldsboro and Wayne 
County, North Carolina.  
 
The City agrees to pay the Authority the funds appropriated to it in the FY22-23 budget year for billing received for and 
during such budget year. 
 
It was recommended that Council approve the following entitled Resolution authorizing the City Manager and City Clerk 
to sign the agreement with GWTA. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION 2022-101 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER AND CITY CLERK TO SIGN A 
FUNDING AGREEMENT WITH THE GOLDSBORO-WAYNE TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (GWTA) FOR THE 
FY22-23 CITY OF GOLDSBORO APPROPRIATION” 
 

Adoption of a Supplement to the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro, North Carolina. Ordinance Adopted. In 
1990, an agreement was reached between the North Carolina League of Municipalities and the City of Goldsboro to engage 
American Legal Publishing Company to revise the Code of Ordinances of Goldsboro.  The revised Code was published in 
1995.  
 
The agreement stated that American Legal Publishing Company would prepare supplements for incorporation of new 
Ordinances to the City Code of Ordinances on a recurring basis.  In compliance with this agreement, the City has received 
the S-47 Supplement.  This Supplement contains all Ordinances of a general nature enacted since the S-46 Code of 
Ordinances dated March 21, 2022. 
 



14 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance enacting and adopting the 2022 S-47 Supplement 
to the Code of Ordinances of the City of Goldsboro. Consent Agenda Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-53 “AN ORDINANCE ENACTING AND ADOPTING A SUPPLEMENT TO THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA” 
 

Departmental Monthly Reports. Accepted as Information.  The various departmental reports for September 2022 
were submitted for Council approval. It was recommended that Council accept the reports as information. Consent Agenda 
Approval. Polack/Broadaway (7 Ayes) 

End of Consent Agenda. 
 
City Manager’s Report. City Manager Tim Salmon recognized and thanked the Parks and Recreation department 

for running the USTA tournament last weekend; City Golf Championship is November 6-7; Mayor’s Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities Annual Awards Ceremony will be held at the Goldsboro Event Center on October 20; Ash Street 
Corridor Study will be at the Goldsboro Event Center on October 20 from 4:00-7:30 pm; On October 10, the Goldsboro 
Business Campus (GBC) groundbreaking event was held and Mayor Pro Tem Polack spoke for the City; The Neuse River 
was recognized today as the “River of the Year” by the American Rivers Organization; Goldsboro Out of Darkness Walk 
will be held from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. at Herman Park on October 22; City of Goldsboro’s 175th Anniversary will be 
held on November 19 from 11:00 a.m. until 2:00 p.m. at the Goldsboro Event Center.   

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 

Councilwoman Jones asked the community to stay safe and shared it takes a village to take care of a village. She asked 
everyone to watch their streets, communities, neighbors, and the elderly. She shared suicide in youth as well as adults is 
high and to ask your children how their day was and if there's anything that's bothering them. She asked that you talk to 
teenagers and adults who are 20 to 30 years old about the medicines that they are on, some of the side effects are suicide 
and depression. She shared she is impressed with the presentations of the NPOs, they are doing good work in Wayne 
County. 
 
Councilman Broadaway congratulated and thanked the nonprofits for the homeless situation that they are handling.  He 
shared that over the last few months in his district he has received a number of complaints that are caused by interactions 
with some of the homeless people, primarily in the Royall Avenue area. Some of the problems are the grocery carts in the 
roadway. He shared we have had complaints from business owners, and motels and we wanted to let the public know the 
city is aware and there has been meetings held and there will be action taken. We hope to have some positive actions which 
would be good for everyone. 
 
Councilwoman Jones stated they have spoken to the unhoused about the issue with the carts and they have tried to help 
them remove the carts. It is being addressed with the unhoused every Tuesday. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Polack thanked everyone who has true love and passion for the betterment of this community. He stated 
the presentations that we witnessed tonight are a testament that we are a city that sees the needs we face and more 
importantly are willing to see that the work gets done. He also stressed the level of accountability we have when in 
possession of firearms and to pray for peace within the nation. 
 
Councilwoman Matthews had no comment.  
 
Councilman Gaylor shared there was some construction on the corner of Leslie Street and Park Avenue this morning and 
all the city employees spoke to him and his son. He stated when you're caught doing something right that it should be 
recognized. He stated we have amazing employees that support this city and he appreciates that small act of kindness. 
 
Councilman Batts stated he was amazed at the presentation by the nonprofits and he didn't know about all the positive stuff 
going on in our community. He thanked everyone for what they do every day. He shared his neighborhood (Bayleaf) had a 
cookout on Saturday and he wanted to give a shout out to their President, Joe Allen for setting it up. He also shared that on 
Saturday he went to the CC Center on George Street, they had the one-year anniversary for the cash in and out. He also 
shared his daughter is home from Charlotte and he is glad to see her and Ms. Sylvia Barnes. 
 
Mayor Ham shared that the American Rivers Organization was here in Goldsboro today to dedicate the Neuse River as 
America’s River and 15 years ago it was on the worst rivers in America list. At the ceremony today there was 
approximately 80-100 people there from throughout the state. There were two state legislators there, a federal 
congressman, and Mr. Michael Reagan the administrator of the EPA, who was born and raised in Goldsboro. He also stated 
he was not proud when he returned and went downtown and noticed a piece of artwork that was vandalized (torn down). 
He stated if you can't be part of the city in a positive way, we don't want you. He also stated he doesn't want a situation in 
Goldsboro like they had in Raleigh. 
 

Closed Session Held.  Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Polack, seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously 
carried, Council convened into Closed Session to discuss personnel, litigation and economic development.   

 
 



11

WE







C











U

O000
Cl
ClM
N

16

46

00c
a 

o .. .. 

3wwwww

w4"

w

a°

i

a°

i

a 

a

w

aiw

a°

i

64- .. 

y   ._......  '" 

a 

w 

w  

C

O 

cc

N

O `' 

w

w)  

O

W 

t

W

V

v) 

O4. 

W

w

0

W

p

w 

u

1

8

w 

U

W

V

U

U

W

4z, 

w 

4U- 

O

N

cev

oo

o

Oootn°

Oo  

tr-

IC _

v)

ZMClc> 

wo

ow

W

W 

o`'

wo

y ° 

V) 

kn

V1

47

O\ 

M

N

M

N

N

N _ 

N

M

00

in

00

M

r

h

N

OO_ 
4•' 

O

M

M

M

O 

t

M

M

O

OHO

o0 ^ 

O

In

in

7

Nen
N

10 

r-- 

C, 

M

V) 

000

N '

n

o

M

p

NN

w

w

W

W

O

NO

W- 

QMU\ 

NV

l

y

oy0

0^

0

N

V1

NN ^

M

op

MW

00

V1 

c

00

M

M

OOw

W00

o0

p

O

O

pW

O

W

W

W

W '

n

WO

OM

u

DUUUUUU

OO

ypUU
U

0

0

0W

C

wO

V

O

W

O

U

p

U

v

O

V

y

ro

Y

ro

U

V

y

G

ro

ro

Y

r% 

C

ro

G

ro

C

G

U

U

C

U

U

U

U

U

0

U

U

U

C

U

0

U

U

U

G

G

U

G

U

U

G

U

y

C

G

U

U

U

U

G

U

U

ro

U

U

U

C

U

y

Y

U

i

C

as ;'.

ro

bT5

b

b

d

GG;.

d

Gy

Z'

3

CGGri) 

ti

v, 

N

v' 

G

ro

ro

ro

ro

rov

o

ro

ccro

ro

ro

ro

co

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

v

ro

ro

rob

d

d

ro

ti ;

5

ro

o

o° 

d

ro

rob

ro

ro

X33333
ro

ro3w3333w3w3ww3w
ro3ww

ro

ro

ro 

w

ro

ro3

asro

ro

ro33

It

or'

IT

Mo

w

000 

cw)

knrot-^

o0rr

o

w

www

w

w

w3

w

Z

N 

oo  

M

oo

M 

O

00 '

IT

IT. 

h

M

O. 

O

V. 

O "

T

O

r

N

N

M

M

M 

O

N

c  

M 

c  

N

N 

c

DCN
m

O 

c

t

4

O

p

O - 

O

O

V1

M

7

o0 "

t

O\ 

w) 

N

op

N

N

N

M

M

N

c  

N

M

N

r     

00

c

O

47 ^ 

M

N

o0

N

N

7

N^^ 

N

N

N

V7

G

V'

1 '

O

4

O

c7

M

r-- 

r` 

c

r --,

I- 

c

4

4

o0

V

N

N

O

M

M

l 

M '

a' 

M '

cY

O

h

M

M

00

M

M

k

4

3

V1

V1

M

op

V;

1

Vl ^ 

M

N

N

M

M

M

M

N

N

M^ 

00

M "' 

V1 ' 

C' 

M 

O

N

O ^ 

C

N

N

N

v7

O

o0

V `

O

D\ 

00

O

D\ 

D\ 

Vl

M

o0 .--, 

N

7 ^ 

00

D\ 

N

o0 !` 

O

f` 

O 

Vi [- 

C` 

00

M

M

M

M

V

to

M

M

d• 

7 -- 

N

N .-• 

N

N

V

V

7

LO°

aZzzZcn

zZZZZZZZZZZZZz
cncncn

cncnU7cnv7cn

cncncncncncncncncn

7

ro

to

0o

0o

0o

0o

to

0o

to

Co

to

to

by

bo

bo

Co

to

to .... 

bq

w

bq

00

0o

Co

Co

b0

bo

to

w

w

w ...... 

bo

w

bq

C

G

C

C

C

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

C

G

G

C

C

G

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

G

G

C

m •

G '

G '

C '

G '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

G '

G

G

C '

G '

G '

C '

G '

C '

C '

C '

G

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

0  

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

Cp-

C.

n=-

0-

0-

0.

n-

0-

0-

0

c-

n

c=="

C-

0-

0-

0p.

fl

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

C

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

m '

po

C

G

G

C

G

C

G

C

G

C

C

C

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

G

C

G

C

C

G

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

G

G

C

C

G

G

C

C

G

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

UN
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

W -

NON

O

L

p

c

aJ

C

1m

O

O

O

LA

O

O

N

aJ

O

U

t

c

4, 

L

p

a, 

Ly

c

3

p

a, 

Q

x

Wm
p

3

0

Q) 

aJ

LO

O

F' 

7

Q- 

aJ

p
0

m

U

aJ

O

W

0

Q

t

L

Q

L

t

fQ0

v

C

U

40

pOLa

tpLQ

O

v acnJ) 

U

Z

a

o

Q

O

O+a+
J

p

4- 

a) 

O

0

p

7

LO

V) aL) 

U- 

p

U

0

0

O'

V) 

C

O

a

L

OL

n

p

CL

a

0

p

10p
m0

m

O

CU

U

p

Q

F+ 

m

Vf

I

p

cu
L

aOJ

mC

w

V) 

tr

Q

aJ

QV) 

Q

m

U

S

L

3

N

p

C

v

O

v

m+ 

a

Z

p

t 

v

aJ

w

mO

Q

aJ

O

0

aJ

c

c/) 

O

C

Mo

L

JO

p

VI

Lm

C

t

u

m

L

O7

aJ

t

S

maJ

pC

Q
L

W

4-

aJ

O

U

u

to

V) 

aJ

w

m

Ln

U

O

U

m

c

O

p= 

m

O

Q

U

LQ

C

cu

M

a

O

E

aJ

Z

aJ

N

U

aJ

Q

s

aJ

N

O

0

m

O

w

0

t

m

o

cu

is

O

41

3

a

a

CL

oA
v°
1i

M

c`

a

O

c" 

acu

w

CDc
a) 

p

p

c

Vii

O

E

J

t

a

O

O

CL

a

Q- 

c

m

m

aJ

N

p

m

cnO

4

J

O

O

p

m

aJ

m

O

V, 

m

aJ

w

e

aJ

a

O

c

U

O

p

c

Q- 

c

v

O

E

v

p

aJ

4O

p

bn

0

U

pp

m

VI

aJ

4- 

l7

O

U

C

7CL

OD

0)-

0

O

LL

a7

aJ

OL

X

aJ

a

aJ

c

Vt

c

NN

CU

0

OL-. 

t4

N

L

Z- 

L

m

E

0

a

3

co

O

U

N

p-

0

C

r

O

4- 

V) 

O

c

Z

to

OD

L

v

Ln

O

N

N

C7

Q

2

U

aJ

L

m

O

v

m

J

m

Op

c

v

p

cm

m

c

aJ

O

W4

U

a

1

H

O

U

0

cu

p

L

m

0

v+ 

cu

aJcu

m

Ln

C

H

N

v

Z

c

a

0

u

E

c

U 

Q

O" 

4' 

w

p

0

Q

aJ

aJ

a

M

U

4- 

c° 

O

X

3

a

O

x

O

m

ma
y°

Ld

CU

MU

a, 

m

L

vii

m

mU

4- 

aJ

L

u

H

v

a, 

O

L

aJ

m

a, 

O

cc

m

O

aJ

v

aJ

aJu

W

m

cm

O

m

0

C

m

aJc

tL

N

m

Nm

aJ

L- 

p

NO

U

V1

aiN

O

Q

W

Q

Z

s

m

Q

aJ

m

Q

Q

Z

aJ

Q

c

Q

O

2

OD

41

W

m

a' 

W

L

X

W

L

1

0

W

W

L

H

p

W

O

Or

O

w

4+ 

c

w

O

C

v

w

OJ

O

w

aJL

W

0

aJ

0

v

c

c

V) 

N

v

E

m

m

0

Ur

Lna

a

m

c

aJ

OZ

o

X

N

m

O

Ln

1

Q

L

O

O

v

m

cu

N

N

aJ

v

U' 

C7

Ln

a

ii

O0
00
Cl
Cl
MN

16

46

00
c

a 

o .. .. 

3wwwww
w4"

w

a°

i

a°

i

a 

a

w

aiw
a°

i

64- .. 

y   ._......  '" 

a 

w 

w  

C

O 

cc

N

O `' 

w

w)  

O

W 

t

W

V

v) 

O4. 

W

w

0

W

p

w 

u

1

8

w 

U

W

V

U

U

W

4z, 

w 

4U- 

O

N

cev

oo

o

Oootn°
Oo  

tr-

IC _

v)

ZMClc> 

wo

ow
W

W 

o`'

wo

y ° 

V) 

kn

V1

47

O\ 

M

N

M

N

N

N _ 

N

M

00

in

00

M

r

h

N

OO_ 
4•' 

O

M

M

M

O 

t

M

M

O

OHO

o0 ^ 

O

In

in

7

NenN

10 

r-- 

C, 

M

V) 

000

N '

n

o

M

p

NN

w

w

W

W

O

NO

W- 

QMU\ 

NV
l

y

oy0

0^

0

N

V1

NN ^

M

op

MW

00

V1 

c

00

M

M

OOw
W00

o0

p

O

O

pW

O

W

W

W

W '

n

WO

OM

u

DUUUUUU
OO

ypUU

U

0

0

0W

C

wO

V

O

W

O

U

p

U

v

O

V

y

ro

Y

ro

U

V

y

G

ro

ro

Y

r% 

C

ro

G

ro

C

G

U

U

C

U

U

U

U

U

0

U

U

U

C

U

0

U

U

U

G

G

U

G

U

U

G

U

y

C

G

U

U

U

U

G

U

U

ro

U

U

U

C

U

y

Y

U

i

C

as ;'.

ro

bT5
b

b

d

GG;.

d

Gy
Z'

3

CGGri) 

ti

v, 

N

v' 

G

ro

ro

ro

ro

rov

o

ro

ccro

ro

ro

ro

co

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

v

ro

ro

rob

d

d

ro

ti ;

5

ro

o

o° 

d

ro

rob

ro

ro

X33333
ro

ro3w3333w3w3ww3w
ro3ww

ro

ro

ro 

w

ro

ro3

asro
ro

ro33
It

or'

IT

Mo

w

000 

cw)

knrot-^

o0rr

o

w

www

w

w

w3

w

Z

N 

oo  

M

oo

M 

O

00 '

IT

IT. 

h

M

O. 

O

V. 

O "

T

O

r

N

N

M

M

M 

O

N

c  

M 

c  

N

N 

c

DCN

m

O 

c

t

4

O

p

O - 

O

O

V1

M

7

o0 "

t

O\ 

w) 

N

op

N

N

N

M

M

N

c  

N

M

N

r     

00

c

O

47 ^ 

M

N

o0

N

N

7

N^^ 

N

N

N

V7

G

V'

1 '

O

4

O

c7

M

r-- 

r` 

c

r --,

I- 

c

4

4

o0

V

N

N

O

M

M

l 

M '

a' 

M '

cY

O

h

M

M

00

M

M

k

4

3

V1

V1

M

op

V;

1

Vl ^ 

M

N

N

M

M

M

M

N

N

M^ 

00

M "' 

V1 ' 

C' 

M 

O

N

O ^ 

C

N

N

N

v7

O

o0

V `

O

D\ 

00

O

D\ 

D\ 

Vl

M

o0 .--, 

N

7 ^ 

00

D\ 

N

o0 !` 

O

f` 

O 

Vi [- 

C` 

00

M

M

M

M

V

to

M

M

d• 

7 -- 

N

N .-• 

N

N

V

V

7

LO°

aZzzZcn

zZZZZZZZZZZZZz
cncncn

cncnU7cnv7cn

cncncncncncncncncn

7

ro

to

0o

0o

0o

0o

to

0o

to

Co

to

to

by

bo

bo

Co

to

to .... 

bq

w

bq

00

0o

Co

Co

b0

bo

to

w

w

w ...... 

bo

w

bq

C

G

C

C

C

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

C

G

G

C

C

G

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

G

G

C

m •

G '

G '

C '

G '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

C '

G '

G

G

C '

G '

G '

C '

G '

C '

C '

C '

G

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

ro

0  

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

Cp-

C.

n=-

0-

0-

0.

n-

0-

0-

0

c-

n

c=="

C-

0-

0-

0p.

fl

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

C

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

m '

po

C

G

G

C

G

C

G

C

G

C

C

C

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

G

C

G

C

C

G

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

G

G

C

C

G

G

C

C

G

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

UN
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U



b4CGCIO cwOCOG. U

y _ " 

GJ " .. ." .. .. ." " ." .. .. ." .. " ." .. ." " .. .. .. .. .. '. 

N

W

w

w

w

w

U

N

t;: 

y

W

aUi

aUi

aUi

v

y

N

aUi

aUi

aUi

aUi

y

aUi

N

N

5t
aUi

aUi

aUi

N

aUi

2211

y

0

y

y

y 

y

w

w

w

c

C, 

D

Oww140OwOww"
U-

ww41.
1

wy14'
u.)

wwwwwwww
ywwwwwww `"
a 

Ol

O

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

O

v) 

oen
M0 — 

oo

O
o

0

O

o0

V 

O

ON

o0

O
Q, 

V

V

a`. 

M

0  

Ln

h

N

ON

O
v) 

00o
C 

O(n

C, 

r- 

t

N

O

N

r4

m

M

v1

M

O

O

O

N

DD

N

r

r

oo

o0

O

N

oo

N'

o

o0

O

M

N

N

O

O

N

O

r

N

01

O

N

O

O

N

M 

O

N `

O

N
l

w

N

w
v) 

M

N

vl

r

r

oo

O

M

N

N

N

M
v> 

M

N '

t

M

N

oo

V

T 

M '

IT

v) 

w

w

w

w

w

M

w
y„ 

cM

w

w

0

0

UUtj
U

U

U

U

U

U

U

O

www

wNO
w

w

wwM
4- '

IT

w

VM
t- 

0

0

0

o

w

O

w

w

0cj0

O

O

w

w

w

U

U

O

O

D

U

U

U

U

U

D

U

U

U

U

O

D

U

0U0
0

0

v

U

U

U

G

G

C

C

C

U

U

U

G

U

C

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

C

U

U

G

C

C

G

S

cd

i

Y

Y

G

C

U

cy

C

C

G

G

C

G

C

U

G

U

U

C

G

C

C

C

C

U

G

G

C

G

C

U

C

G

U

G

U

U

U

ni

G

G 

d

b

m

co

co

co

m

cd

c

cd

cob
c

co

m

co

cd

m

b

c -

0 ,

0

c

m

c

ca

cd

rob
co

co

c

m

c

a

m

o

ro

b

b

b

m

m ° 

co

cd

wwwwwww
m3

ca :

m

ow
M

Cdwwwwww `
wwwww
loww
lw

m

co

cz

33

wwC,
r._

V-

r

o

ow

r3v 
o

o

cIcwIOww
O

o

o

c

cIcwIc
cIC.
c

cw
o

cw

cwWLIJ _ 

v) 

N

10 '

IT= 

10  

M

M 

O 

O 

O

M

M

M

M

Mc
M 

O

M

M

M

M

M

M 

O

M

M

M

M

M 

O

M

M 

c

M 

c

z 

c

o0

0

oo
C, ^ 

r 

NN
M
I— \

O

r

N

N

N

N

N

MN
M

M

N

N

N

N

N

N

M

N

N

N

N

N

M

N

N

M

N

M

M

M
1— 

0, 

M

O

O

M

M

N

N

r

O 

v) 

N

N

01

N

1

N

NC.
6

6

6

6

6
D, 

N

N

O

O

vn -- 

N

C.

6

N

6

N

N

N

M

N

O

C; 

M

Z- 

v) 

M

M

N

N
v) 

M

v) 

M

ZT

O

M

o0 '

n
r- 

N

z? 

r

N

1

4  

N

00

M

z `

O

r

r

M 

O

O

M

N [ 

7

N

N

01

N

M

N

V

O

N

N

N 

V

oo

N

oo

M

M

N

O

M - -- 

v) 

N

N

N

V

N

N
v) 

o0

N

N  

O , •^ 

N

N

V

h

oo

000

Cl

Z

000

N

M ^

O

M

M

N
v) 

N 

M
v) • 

V

M

CY -

T

Z

M
v) 

N 

7

rf

M
v) -

t

M

V

W) 

Oro
w) 

M
v) 

ZZZZ
ZZZV)
cncnv)
cnC-
0cf)

cnunuocncncncncncnv
c/)

cncncnoncnV)
V)

v)

cncncnv)
c)

cnrncncncnvncnZcn

CIO

bobo
bo

to

to

0o

CIO

W

WmCIO
to

to

bo

bo

bo

bo

bo

W

W

W

bo

WW
mbo
bo

bo

bo

bo

to

bo

to

bo

WWbO
bo

bo

CIOao
bo

bo

W

bo

bo

C

c

c

c

G

G

c

c

c

c

G

G

G

c

c

c

c

G

G

c

c

c

c

G

G

G

G

G

G

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

c

G

G

G

G

c

c

c

c

c

c

cd

cd

cd

cd

u

u

cd

0

rm-0

cd

0

0

u

u

u

cr-aQ

cC «

S

u

u

c0

cd

Q

mr-Q

mr-Q

u

Q

Q

u

u

u

0

u

u

u

u

Q

u

0

v

u

u

0

u

u

u

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

G

C

C

C

G

G

G

G

C

C

C

C

G

G

G

C

C

C

G

G

C

C

C

C

C

C

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

G

C

C

C

C

aaG
G

G

G

G

aa

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U (

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

75
i:- ,.

y

Ea'E-. .'

G+ 

t

E

e

i .'

Z.+ 

S
a' - -

F

L' 

E ,

L

E  

5z- 
i

E -

S  

i:- 

t •.

C- 

le -

S ."

G., : 

o0rn

b4

M

G

00

GG

oN

wO

bq

CO

i $ U " 

O

o  

o

N

cCd .

00OO

a` 

p

00

w0

U

N

O

U

C

U

G ~' 

G

C

as

2

CU

al

p

o

Mw0333
z

Z00

OO
O, 

Q

It) 

If)

C 

00

N 

o

U

N

O

O

M

oo

M

vi

3

o ! 

a

0

W .

0

M ,

V

M

N

LU

U

pZZcnV)
cnZ 

LU

W

cC

by

to

b0

b0

to

toto
bA

G

G

G

G

C

G

G

Z °

cO

ami

ami

cn

C

U

U

U

U

U

U

U

Wa°
oi

aci

aci

aci

aci

aci

aci

aci

W

a

CO

m

onc

m

C

JU_ 

v) 

N

N

Di

L

NON

L

if

N

E

C

l0

a 

N

O

tipC

r -
I

O

I- 

3

0

e+

n

t

o

0

L

41

1

1

O

E

1

p

0

v

y

C

t' 

MU

D

oJ

vcnim

m

a

QO

t

4: 

O

0

OA

L1

O

N

N

v

O

0

a

a) 

Q- 

M

Q— 

E

0

m

O

Y
4- 

coo

O
0

2

N

v

o

a) 

v

L

v

to

Ln

Q

CL

pLn

p

0

v) 

v

m> 

O

C

Q

N

a

w

E

U

O

C

m

p

U

O

L

ry

cn

O

L

C

a

c

CO

0

0

3

Q! 

a

U

QJ

O

U

4J

t

f0

Nf0
4J

U

N

L

Q

cu

Uv

p

Lm

0

t

QO

U

N

In

W" 4J

W

0

QCL
L

ai

a + 

Q

L

a) 

tot4J

LAv
o

u

La) 
W

L

O

C

W

3

cu

4J

3

V

vU

E

Ua) 

O

O

O

4J

a) 
OA

v

S

O

0•

Ocn

0

x

QO

NO

f6C

O

x

In

0= 

N

NO

3

a

0

V) 

W

E

W

t

o

c

O

N

a) 

Z, C 

LL

U

O

t

t

4' 

C

f

6

O

O

0

O'

n

v

vC

M

w

G) 0

O

Q

Qu

N

o

CL

O

E

E

O-

o

N

0

O

N

M

M

O

v

l0

0

N

W

C

V— 

m

U

L

O

O

W

N

4J

u- 

3

mLn-
0

30

7

vos

ss
cc= 

c

c

F- 

H

U
F- 

m

H

cn

H

m

m

U

H

N

m

4

to

1.

0



D





















NNON
NOzON

s
a

a, 

QO
Q

aJ

u

aJ

N

1 _

O

U

a1

E

V

aJ

L- 

p

Ln

a1

OV

L

t

O= CL

m

C0

4+ 

L

C

CU

v1

C
f

4J

N

J

LJ

O_ 

CU

O

O

O

O

O'' 

O

aJ

L

O

0

E

d

O

Z

cu

aJ

0

v

Q

a) 

p

Q

Q) 

Q

a) 

C

Cf0

0L

C

lO

t

M ++ 

O

O+ 

N

vii

2

O

a) 

t

U

O

d

Q

C

a

N

E

m

v

v

C

O

0

O

c

co

w

O

E

a

m' 

z

3ao

aJJ

a

QJ = 

N

u

U

N

a, 

C

bDf0

aJ

aJ

co

OU

M

JO

C

v

f0

O

E

0

fC

N

LO

in

7

O

a

i— 

n. O

cc

p

U

a

m

u

O

C

Cp

a1

N

C

0n

O

O

C

U

m= 

u

i

z

Q

C

U

r- 

co

N

N6CU
a) 

O

EL

Q= 

2

u

a) 

dA

C

t0

w

O

O

0

N

v

Cto

Z

m

v

4- 

m

O

O

O= N

N

v

N

iO

O

c0U

a

p

to

a1

a) 

aJ

on

O

ON

O +- i

U

W

cc

3ca

aJ

J

m

O

O

A= 

Z

O

m

a

f0

0

0

c

v

d

o

o

U

v

U

N

0

CD

O

Uo0N

v

N

O

f

6

w

O

OO

bA

Lf0

C7

N

J

dU

La1
O

O

aJ

a

U

0

O

X

0

to

v_ 

0t

LL

Ou

U

N "

a

O

p

Q

LJ

V) 

OL

LJ

U

L

O

N

N

C

E— 

rN-1

m

Q

w

v

3

cuo

0

0

v

m

E

c

0U

a, N

m

r

mC

u

m

M

t

d +, 

4p

pw

v

t

N=:

3

p

C

api

O

CM

O

O

O

re "- = 

E

0= 

U

0

Ln

N

ii

w

4J

O

tD

X

O

10v

4- 

H

Z

D

Ov

EG
E

O

u

au
a) 

u

pC

O

O

NO

UO
O

D

t

0

2,

LL

rj

47

L

a

Nv
CU

0

4- 

U

r'
1

a, 

a. Q

u

O

O

Z

N

o

0

aoaa A

n

N

Q

LnQ

4r

E

va

2

0

o

O

a, 

E

E

d

L> 

O

C7

O

O

Q

3v
CL

CL

Ln

4J

U- 

Lnm
ai

E

4-

E

to

u

a, 

v +

J

O

m

to

4

Ln

m

U

N

E

Ln

N

Ln

u

0

Ln

Ln

Ln

Ln

Ln

w

Oto

O

Q

v

o

w

0" 

OE

w° 

w

e

w_ 

w

w

iaj

w

E "- 

CC

00

m

w

Ln

w

w— 

w

V, 

w

w

C

w

0CA

bD

0

O

00

4

2

c

2

c

2

v

a) 3

2

m

2

0

2

U

v

O

ro

0

0

CU

a, 

v

on

a; 

z

io

N

L- 

N

Z

N

L

CLw
C

0

CL

C

a, 

n

oL

0U= 

mV, O

p

m

M

m

u

2

0

OA

u

U

a. -

0

U

NNONNOzONsa
a, 

Q
OQ



E

Public Hearing Continued to 
12/5/22 Meeting

















F





















rw

R

LL

4 

aUUN
r

a

aCli

N

Lna

a

U

Q

J

V

C

a

C

L

L

C

C

O

a

u

C

f0

Z

C

4- 

ra

O

m

Oa 

O} 

u

f

6

O

WN

v

tin

s

L

t

c

O

a

O

4- 
O

a

s

a

Ua

Cm

cti

aa

p

s- 

tin

O

C

O

O

E

N

3

5co

Xa

Ln

na

E

ca

a

a

Z

na

zQ

a + 

a

o

co

aL

Qa

p

v

v 

a4+ 

M

O

C

o 

C

N

p

O

J

a= 

N

U

cn

fu0

a

O

a

E

a

v' 

L

O

U

a

f6

p

L

0

E

o

N

E

n

m

0

a

o

O

E

Z

v

O '

a

E

O

CO

uV) 
C

y

u

Q- 

n

O

O

C

c

6

W

tin +' 

a

C

Q

C

L

u

m

L

6

a

a

a

CD

S

Q

C

C

a

Ln

fti

U

p

N_ 

a

C

Q

a

s

Q

L

a

0

t

Lo

4- 

a

W

z

p

U

C) 

Q

a

fti

toC

4J

fti

La

N

a

CQ

ECL

a

s

O

N

ccd

J

a

L

aco

Q

cn

a

E

t

to

o

a

ro

D

C) 

u 

a

tin

c

c

L

E

o

a

U

c

O

U

N 

a

c

c=

a

o

ca

o

a

N

m

a

m

0

p

v

O

rNo

3

a 

C

a

N

S

Q

i

0

N

t

C

in

w

in

O

N

fD

a

4+ 

v

0 _

U

LO

aE

p

t

o

N

Q

a

a

p

S

C

N

a

0

N

E

C

iJ

a

N

C

N

a

O

3

E

E" 

c

o

L.

p

M ±* 

v 

n

c

C

t

c

O

Q

z

lti

0-

0

C

a

p

l6

N

N

C

to

f6

O

a

Z

O

V

oo

m

a

U

J

Q

p

a

0

c

tinC

O

to

L7

C

o

oU

u

Z

O

U^ 

a

EO

nj

E

ra

C

V

v

E

oC

p

O

0

VZ

m

c

C

4, 

tin

to

ON

O

Z

vicCU

CC

M

N

n

U

m

N

a

ni

a

U

U

a

C

c

N

N

u

U} 

Z

NN

O

U

a

t

a

a

O

V)
i

C< 

4- 

U

j

C

p

J

O

u >.

N

c

L

m

v

Q

U

t

3

a

c

f6

v

cc

Q

f6

c

a' 

a

E

o

a- } 

a

a- 

a

J

O

a

E

O

O

v

v^ 

M

z

c

J

o

m

n

C

v 

0

0

p

a

O

v

a

O

tin -

a

tin

3

U

W

ti4

O

tip ' 

a

O

O

O

O

ca

CO

a

E '

n

Q- 

v

m

r

Ccu

z

C

0LJ

c

Lntin

o

c

a

E

4- 

v 

Q

c

a

WS

U

O

G

C

a

C

C

cn

U

f6

ON

O

uC

O

N

N

WS

a

a

p

a

to

a

O

w

lD

v

a "

a

v

cti

CO

U

a

O

0

v 

C

Ln

a

CLf6

z~ 

Z

tin

Z

C

a, 

C7

C

a

C

O

a

Q

N

E

a

v

v

N

u

E

C

m

N

a

o

tin

Ln

a

m

u

p

a

Q

o

Q

a

W

Z

a

M

C

v

Q

m

a

Q

Q

E

r

n

m

O

L

Q

0>, 

aQ) 
a

a

Ca

Q

a" a

QL

U

0

DW
a

a

E

to

o

C

a

fti

LL

a

U

LQ

o

w

a_ N

L

a

Q

ra

L

C

a

CL

4J

Q

M

L

N

S> 

o

Y

J

a

L

a

a

vi

a

4' 

a

a

a

a

O

0

W

N4-
1

O

cti

O

E

N

r° 

ate+ 

v

C

U

at+ 

rti

cv

W

i

co

z

v

O

CL

Ln

Ln

aa

V

vi

Ln '

in

a

kn

N

E

zW
a

w

w

w

tA

w

E

a. 

w

w

f° 

w

a

E

in

ate -+ 

a

00Ln

a

vii

N

O4' 

F- 

2

tion

Ca

wW

0

ccW

a

w-

0

W

W

4— 

7u

w

a

W

L

L

L

CLW

a

WW

U

O

O

m

a

j

j

j

N

j

JO

p

j

N

co

L

u

7

N

00

E

E

a

a

Q

z

CO

7

O

M

m

VIO

E

a

CC

L

E

V

Q

O

n

cm

ua

Ln

aL

a

C

O

c

ua

Cm

m + 

O

U

S "

a

J

L

M

fC

m

i

m

C

J

d .

S

U

rw

R

YaUUNra

aCli
C7

Ln

m

a

O

Q

J



G







NNONzWUzQz_ CcrO

J

w

U

N

w

JQ

V) 

Z

a

J

wN
0

a

a

cr- 

v) 

v, 

Q

cr- 

U

Lri

0 = 

Lri

Q

U

0

zOO
Q

rO
LU

O

o

0

w

O

Lu > (

7LL

Q

0

w

or

w

LUCL

N

w

Z = 00 
LU

H

Z

CO

Zaw
F- 

U

0  

Lrj

N (

A

Lu
J

LU

Ln

0)

0

U

J

N

F- 

U

w

Q

Z_ 

a

V) 

z

0

m

z

Q

Lu

cnz

Q

0

w

w

U

F- 

U

Q

w

Q

F - 

Z_ 

w

Z

0

W

w

cr- 

U

U) 

0

w

Z

U

Q

wCLV) 

A

C

J '

C

w +' 

O

tin

U

Y ^ 

a) -

p +-+  

t

O

v

O

Ln

4- 

O

4- 

t  

aJ +' > 

c

Z

C3

a) 

QJ

ov -

r- 

v

0

oN
OO

m

d

a, 

aJ

a

N

vvO

rQJ +.+ 

v

4- 

w

z

o

x

p

Op > 

O

m

Q

v -

E'

O

U'

a

v

L- 

On

iO

U

E

O

CL

U
cu

O

fi' 

oo
W

E

O

41

U 

In %

n

0

l

Cx

0

O

v

wa
o

Cc

O

O ` 

O0

Zn

L+J

U

Du > 
L

L

U

Q
a, 

o

o

c

3

i +

r

a, 

ca

c

3

4- 

c

v

L

E° 

s

Ln

c 

c

a

o

a

a

v

c +' ° ,

n

o °' 

u

z 

a

a +  

m

e

L

m _ 

a

E

i

ca -

61

a, 

t

to ,

n + 

m

E

aJ

U `

ti
4" 

c

M

y +, 

Q

E +

1

O

Q

t

O

c

Ln  

a, ' 

aJ

O

aJ

c = 

a

to

a

o °' — - 

N

aJ

aJ

O +

J

N ++ 

v

m

CU

in

aJ

cn "

o

v) 

Qvi _ 

tn

i

U

v4 -'

f

U } 

Ln

p "

a

N

CL

o

o

c

cu

E

a

S

a

o

o

o •

E

C

3

o -

0

o

U

acs, 

o

O

co

v '

a

O

O

V

c

O -

p

O

41

v 

H

N

O

cn

M

N

O

O -

0 = 

N > 

p

to

p

to

p — ++ -

Q

0

O

Q = + 

to

CL

aJ

to -

0 . '

a

O

3

E

a, 

J +. 

J

m -

Q

O +. -

a

v

v

41

cn

L

to

a) 

m

f6

E =

O +- ++ +

L+ 

aJ

O

aJ

t

O

QU

QJ  

t

a . 

i

O

c

p

v

C- .: 

Ln 

U

vi

aJ

v ? 

3 >_ 

3

bn

2

U } 

4 

n

QJ

u

4- 

L

O

on > 

o

U

00

N

L

Q

N

O

c

p

c

O

v

cr- 

p
QJ  

U 

O ` -

0

N

m

c "

a

to

t

a, 

a + 

s

c

kn > 

c

v

p= 

4- 

E -

0

O

t

s

N

c +. 

O

O

a + 

4J

pM } 

O

p

co `= 

t

J

to

E

aJ

4- 

3 _ 

U

U > 

N ++ 

t

o

f0

c

O

i = 

LJ

O

v

a, 

v

E

v 

o

Q, 

v

N

a, 

Ln

E ++ 

U

N

u

O

aJ

Q- 

a- 

o- 

o

v — 

o

c

c

E

v

c

v

E 

U

a) 

cu

aaJ

t

o

c

a, °

c° 

o

a, 

o

X

o

f

E

aNJ

o

a

t° 

a, ° 

c° 

o

c

Q

E

O

a

Ln

U

U .

N

L

Ln

L

0

U

N

cEo

c '

n

p

4- 

aJ

Z

a

Q) '

o

c

n + 

4 '

Ln

Ln

aJ +, 

CU

D

aJ  

4_ 

3

E

p

a

w

CA

o— ° 

v ° 

o

a

a

0

c

c °' : 

a

E

x

a

E

Ln

O

ra +, 

z

bo +- 

GJ

U  + -

0

c

O

V

L

Z

v

O

O  

C .

0

0 •

U

to

Q

Q

N = 

N

aJ

O

aJ `^ '

O

U

c -

c

a„ 

O +'' 

cu -

0

aJ

C

O _

a

O

4- •

L . 

OC

U

p +, 

E "

O

Q

O - 

vi `^ 

L +' +' 

to .

p +

1

c=

o

O

O '

vf

U

O

0

O

aJ '

a

a

U

ca

O

c

O

aJ

c

N +., 

O

a

aJ

v

QJ -

p + _  +

J

UCli
O

L

CL) 

O

O

c ° 

3

p

v

p

F- 

co  

O

E

E

4

0

O

Q > 

N

c

v> 

c

U

w

o

Z

cco > 

M °, 

Q  

o° 

o

ami

v

a

v

Q

a

a

a

s

E

u

o

o

v . 

m

O +' >' , 

c

L

p

0 +

J

c }, 

E

QJ + 

aJ

a., 

L

O

O

E

O

O

aj

OU

O

t

U

4- 

ON

O

W

L

W

p _ +, 

U

U

L7 `

n

U

cc 

as

0

V

a

O

O

Q= +, 

p

Q? 

L +, 

O

Z

a, 

c

wo

cr- 

0

U °' 

N

v

aJ

o +

J

0

O

E ,; +.. 

c -

Q

aJ

o

an

a, 

cu

LU 0LL

o .

N

v

N

m '

aJ

X

CL

Q

Ln

Q

a

s

a

Q

o -

a  

c

o

f6 +-' 

o

V

M

s

epi

V

Ln +; 

V '

n

vi = 

vi

a

a

o " 

vi

o

QJ `^ 

vi
c

Clion " 
c

vi

vi

vii :

t

U

vi +-' _ 

w

w

N

o

0

0

w

p

w

aJ

w

U

w

w

O

E

N

i

w

a '

O

i , , 

W

O

p

w> 

w

E

U +, 

w

3

F- 

ai

W

L

bZ

Z

N

w

Y

O

w +

1

W ,} 

W

m

w

QJ

LL' 

O

QJ  '

p

LU •

N

CC

E

4_ 

O

m _

c +' 

er = 

O > 

O _ 

Q

Q+, 

V

w

4. 

U

S

O

w

a -

a

w

w

O +, 

O

w

0

O

N

v _ _ +- = 

ca = - -- 

2 `' = 

3 `

n

LJ = = 

U

0

u

2

4 - 

OD

0

co "

a

N

a! 

Q

1

v : 

c

ti

N

F- 

i

O

O

Oa • 

aJ = 

N

O

cu

z

t6

N 

o

u +, 

c

cu

a

o

a = 

L

cr

O. 

N

C +, 

C

c

p

0

aJ '

L

U +- 

U >. 

C

L -

p

Q = 

L

p

v, 

U .

p

N ++ > ,

v

c

a

o

o

c

3

E

v

L

o

u

o

aJ

uo=

aC70

00

0

0

Zi

f6

0°-

0

u° 

a =

0

v



LnWLnWWaLLOW
JmHLnWJV_ Q

NNONNNZOzLLW0NG1WJVQ

N



H



RESOLUTION NO. 2022 — 10 01, 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH NORTH STATE
COMMUNICATIONS ADVANCED SERVICES, LLC. 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro owns property at Peacock Park; and

WHEREAS, the North State Communications Advanced Services, LLC has need of this space for a
point -of -presence site for use in their fiber to the home project, and

WHEREAS, the citizens of Goldsboro have a need for fiber -to -the -home and other Internet services, 
and

WHEREAS, the city is capable of accommodating the request for space without harm to the City, and
staff is requesting that council approve the lease agreement with North State Communications
Advanced Services, LLC, and

WHEREAS, in consideration of the use of said space, North State Communications Advanced
Services, LLC will provide dark fiber for use by the City of Goldsboro for the term of the lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Goldsboro, 
North Carolina, that: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sign the lease agreement with North State
Communications Advanced Services, LLC. 

2. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after November 7, 2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

avid Ham, Mayor



   
 

   
 

NORTH CAROLINA 
WAYNE COUNTY 
 
 THIS LEASE, made this 3rd day of October, 2022, between CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO, NORTH CAROLINA, a municipal corporation, party of the first part 
and/or hereinafter identified as Landlord or City of Goldsboro, and North State 
Communications Advanced Services, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company, 
referred to as party of the second part and/or hereinafter identified as Tenant; 
             

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 That the party of the first part does hereby lease and let to the party of the 
second part, its successors and assigns, the use of land to put a building to house fiber 
(“Fiber Bldg”) as a Point of Presence Site (POP Site), located in a space behind the 
Goldsboro Park Maintenance Facility at Peacock Park, Goldsboro, Wayne County, 
North Carolina. Location shown as Exhibit A. 
 

 1.  TERM.  The term of this lease shall be for up to and no greater than 9 years 

beginning on October 3, 2022 and then expiring on October 2, 2031.    

 2.  TERMINATION.  This lease may be terminated by either party upon (180) 

days' written notice to the other party, provided Tenant is not in breach of this Lease 

beyond any applicable cure period.  

 3.  RENTAL.  The rental for said term is provided in exchange for two strands of 
dark fiber provided to the City to connect our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex and 
Goldsboro Fire Department Training Grounds to a connection point for the existing City 
Fiber Network, and two dark fibers to connect City Hall Addition to the Public Works 
Complex. Images/Details attached as Exhibit B. Connections will be made as the fiber 
projects for the vendor are being completed. Dark fiber is unused optical fiber that has 
been laid but is not currently being used in fiber-optic communications. Because fiber-
optic cable transmits information in the form of light pulses, a "dark" cable refers to one 
through which light pulses are not being transmitted. 
 
 4.  PAYMENT OF RENTAL.  No monetary amount is being paid for the lease. 

 5.  VISIBILITY AND APPEARANCE.  The party of the second part shall maintain 

the area being leased in a clean and sanitary condition, keeping the property free of 



   
 

   
 

trash and rubbish. The party of the second part shall be responsible for any all damages 

to the leased premises, or any other area of the Fiber Bldg so damaged by it, its 

employees, agents, attendees, members and/or guests.   

 6. INDEMNITY.  Landlord and Tenant each indemnifies the other against and 

holds the other harmless from any and all costs, demands, damages, suits, expenses, 

or causes of action (including reasonable attorney(s) fees and court costs) which arise 

out of the use and/or occupancy of the Fiber Bldg by the indemnifying party. This 

indemnity does not apply to any claims arising from the gross negligence or intentional 

misconduct of the indemnified party. Except for its own acts of gross negligence or 

intentional misconduct, Landlord will have no liability for personal injury or death, loss of 

revenue due to discontinuance of operations at the POP Site, or imperfect 

communications operations experienced by Tenant or any other party for any reason. 

The indemnification obligations set forth in this paragraph shall survive the expiration or 

earlier termination of this Lease. 

7.  INSURANCE.  (a) Tenant shall carry during the term of this Lease and until all 

equipment is removed from the POP Site, at Tenant's own cost and expense, 

commercial general liability insurance with a Commercial General Liability Endorsement 

having a minimum limit of liability of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence, 

with a combined limit for bodily injury and/or property damage together with an 

endorsement for contractual liability for any one occurrence; (b) Tenant shall name 

Landlord as an additional insured under Tenant's liability policy. Tenant agrees to give 

at least thirty (30) days written notice of termination or cancellation of the policy to 



   
 

Page 3 of 8 
 

Landlord. A certificate of such insurance, together with such endorsement, shall be 

delivered to Landlord within thirty (30) days from the execution of this Lease and before 

the expiration of any term of such insurance from an insurance company authorized to 

do business in the State of North Carolina. (c) Landlord agrees to maintain commercial 

general liability insurance in amounts deemed reasonably satisfactory to Landlord and 

which are in amounts consistent with industry practices for the business in which 

Landlord is engaged. Landlord shall have the right to self-insure.  

8.  SUBROGATION.  (a) In General. All insurance policies required under this 

Lease shall contain a waiver of subrogation provision under the terms of which the 

insurance carrier waives all of such carrier's rights to proceed against Landlord and 

Tenant. (b) Mutual Release. Landlord and Tenant each release the other and their 

respective representatives from any claims by them or any one claiming through or 

under them by way of subrogation or otherwise for damage to any person or to the POP 

Site and to the fixtures, personal property, improvements and alterations in or on the 

POP Site that are caused by or result from risks insured against under any insurance 

policy carried by them and required by this Lease, provided that such releases shall be 

effective only if and to the extent that the same do not diminish or adversely affect the 

coverage under such insurance policies.  

9.  ACCESS/ USE BY CITY.  In the event that the City deems it necessary, 

through the determination of the City Manager and notice in either oral or written 

communications, that the area(s) being leased to the Party of the Second Part is 

required for use by the City, then the Party of the Second Part agrees to so relinquish its 







   
 

Page 6 of 8 
 

EXHIBIT A 
POP SITE LOCATION FOR TENANT FACILITY 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
 

Page 7 of 8 
 

 
EXHIBIT B 

GOLDSBORO FIBER STRANDS CONNECTION POINTS 
 

Bryan Multi-Sports Complex 

 
 
Fire Training Grounds 
 

 
 



   
 

Page 8 of 8 
 

 
 
City Hall to Public Works 

 
 
 
 
 
 



I



RESOLUTION 2022- l OJ

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO ACCEPT

GRANT FUNDING FROM THE NC OSBM THAT WAS APPROVED IN THE NC
GENERAL ASSEMBLY BUDGET FOR FY22- 23

WHEREAS, the NC General Assembly approved their budget for the fiscal year of
2022- 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is the recipient of grant funding in the amount
of $ 100, 000 which will be distributed through the NC Office of State Budget and
Management; and

WHEREAS, these funds are to be used for capital improvements/ City infrastructure

WHEREAS, City staff will use the funding to construct a sidewalk connection
along the north side ofAsh Street from the Westhaven Community towards and connecting
to existing Ash Street sidewalk; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. City staff accept the $ 100,000 grant funding for said sidewalk connection. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
7th

day of
November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

Oa34 
Laura Getz, City Clerk

David Ha , Mayor



J



RESOLUTION 2022- 10 I

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO TO ACCEPT
GRANT FUNDING FROM THE NC OSBM THAT WAS APPROVED IN THE NC

GENERAL ASSEMBLY BUDGET FOR FY22- 23

WHEREAS, the NC General Assembly approved their budget for the fiscal year of
2022- 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is the recipient of grant funding in the amount
of $ 50,000 which will be distributed through the NC Office of State Budget and
Management; and

WHEREAS, these funds are specifically for Parks and Recreation for capital
improvements or equipment; and

WHEREAS, Parks and Recreation staff will use the funding to purchase the
necessary equipment to continue operations; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the
City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. City staff accept the $ 50,000 grant funding and use it for equipment for Parks
and Recreation. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this
7th

day of
November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

iaivid "Ham., Mavor



K



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- 10, 6 - 

RESOLUTION

v, 

RESOLUTION OF INTENT TO

PURCHASE USING PROCUREMENT EXCEPTION

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro currently owns 2 Compost agitators manufactured by BDP
Industries; and, 

WHEREAS, Compost Agitator # 1 is budgeted to be rebuilt in FY2023 at a cost of $150,000; and

WHEREAS, replacement parts are specific to the machines and manufacturer; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro is granted authority under § 143- 129( e)( 6)( i) to exempt
purchases from bidding requirements when performance and price competition for these products are not
available; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that: 

It is recommended the Council authorize this purchase to maintain compatibility with current
system. 

This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
7h

day of November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

L:A 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

7"& NOC-, 
id Ham, Mayor



L



RESOLUTION NO. 2022- i o 6

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FIRE CHIEF

TO SIGN MUTUAL AID AGREEMENTS IN FIRE EMERGENCY SERVICES

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro Fire Department works with Seymour Johnson Air Force

Base and Wayne County Firefighters Association to provide emergency service coverage to the
community. A mutual aid agreement provides all parties with clarity of responsibility and
expectations; and

WHEREAS, the lapse in time and changes across the administrations warrant an update. 

It is deemed in the best interest of the public to do so; and

WHEREAS, the purpose of the agreement is to provide each of the parties hereto, 

through mutual cooperation, a pre -determined plan; as agreed upon in dispatch protocol, by
which aid will be rendered to the other in case of any incident which may demand services to a
degree beyond the existing capabilities of either party. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina, that the Fire Chief is authorized to sign the Mutual Aid In Fire

Emergency Services Agreement between Seymour Johnson Air Force Base and Goldsboro Fire
Department and Wayne County Firefighters Association. 

This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this the
7th

day of
November, 2022. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Clerk

PHam, Mayor















0

M



1 
August 2022 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO  
SPECIAL EVENTS/PARADE/STREET CLOSING 

PERMIT APPLICATION
**In the event of a street closing or carnival, an application should be submitted at least 

30 days prior to your parade or special event. 

I. General Information 
Type of Event: (please check all that apply)  
 Parade  Run/Walk  Festival  Street Closure  Carnival  Other (explain): ________________ 

Event Name:    __ 

Event Date(s):      Event Website:  

Inclement Weather/Rain Date(s):  __ 

Description of Event (Please briefly describe the event.)

             

      

____________________________________________________________________________________________  

Requested Event Location:       ________  ______  

Event Start Time/End Time:     

Set-Up:  Date & Time (start/end):          

Dismantle (Completion): Date & Time (start/end):      

Estimated Daily Attendance:  ______ 

Will this event require street closures?   Yes  No    Closure Times________________ 

If yes, please list the streets that you are requesting to be closed: 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

II. Applicant and Sponsoring Organization Information
Sponsoring Organization Name:       ______ 

Are you a non-profit? � Yes   � No   If yes, are you:  � 501c (3)   � 501c (6)  � Place of worship
 

Applicant Name:       Title:     

Address:     ______ 
 

City:      State:  Zip: ____    _ Phone:   

Cell Phone:    Email:    ______  

    Date of Application ______________ 
       (Inner Office Use Only) 

Downtown Lights Up
Tuesday Nov. 22

n/a

Downtown Lights Up is an annual holiday event held downtown to celebrate the "flipping of the switch"
officially kicking off the holiday season. This free, family-friendly event is a community favorite and
attracts more than 500- attendees each year

100 & 200 Blocks of North and South Center Street, excluding southbound
lane of 200 S Center Street

Tuesday Nov. 22 5pm-8pm

Nov. 22, 9am (200 block of N Center only, 4:15 remaining closure

Tuesday Nov. 22 8:30pm

5000+
9a-200 Block of N. Center
4:15pm 100 & 200 Block of S. Center & 100 block of N Center

100 & 200 Blocks of North and South Center Street, excluding southbound
lane of 200 S Center Street/ 4 spaces of John St. parking lot

City of Goldsboro - Downtown Development

Kayla Jones Marketing/Admin

116 N. Center Street

Goldsboro NC 27530 919-734-4959

kjjones@goldsboronc.gov

0



2 
August 2022 

Day of Event Contact:  
 

Name:         Phone:  __________      
 

III. Event Map 

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- FORMATION AREA LOCATION:   _______     

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnivals- STARTING POINT:   ________      

For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- ENDING POINT:        ______  

*Please provide a detailed map of your event, including race/walk/parade route(s), stage(s), 
inflatables, rides, booths, tents, parking, etc.  (Please attach additional pages as needed.) 

 
IV. RESTROOMS & SITE CLEANUP (Bathroom facilities are required for events 

lasting longer than two hours and must be ADA compliant.)   
 

One Port-A-Jon is recommended per 100 people, and is based on event duration 
instead of number of participants.   
  
How do you plan to handle restroom services? □ Portable Toilets □ Other 
If portable toilets will be provided, please list the name/contact of the company:  
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
If no portable toilets will be provided, how will these requirements be handled? 
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

How do you plan to remove garbage and/or recycling? (City receptacles must be requested separately 
no less than 30 days prior to the event. Contact the Public Works Department at 919-750-7450.)  
 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

Kayla Jones 919-734-4959

Parks Portable Toliets

City receptables 



3 
August 2022 

V. Event Details:  Please answer the following questions regarding your event.  
 
 Yes    No Does the event involve the sale of food? 
 Yes    No   Does the event involve the sale of alcohol?      
  If “YES” has the health department been notified?    

 For events with food, a letter from the health department must be submitted 30 days 
prior to the event. 

o Health Department: (919) 731-1000 
 The ABC Permit, issued by the NC ABC Commission, must be submitted to the 

Goldsboro Police Department prior to the event.  The event permit will not be issued 
until the ABC Permit is submitted. 

o NC ABC Commission: (919) 779-0700 
 

 Yes    No Will there be musical entertainment at your event?  
  If “YES”, please provide the following information:  

 Amplification?  � Yes   � No    
Note: Any Live or Loud Music cannot begin prior to 10am, must end by 10pm and is 
subject to all city noise ordinances, unless approved in advance by the Goldsboro 
City Council.  Please contact the City of Goldsboro Planning Department at 919-580-
4333 for questions regarding City Ordinances.  
 

 Yes    No Will there be any tents or canopies in the proposed event site? If “YES”, please provide the 
following information:  

 Approximate Number of tents:       

 Approximate Sizes:          

 Will any tent exceed 400 sq. feet in area?     � Yes   � No 

Note: It is the renter’s responsibility to contact the Inspections Department to 
arrange for all tent inspections that are required by City of Goldsboro ordinance. A 
permit is required when using any type of tent.  

 City of Goldsboro Inspections Department (919) 580-4385  
 

 Yes    No Will you require electrical hook-ups for this event? (Please note that electrical availability is 
limited.) 

 

 Yes    No Will admission fees be charged to attend this event?  
 If “YES”, provide the cost(s) of all tickets:    ______________________  
 

 Yes    No Will fees be charged to vendors to participate in this event? 
 If ‘YES”, please provide the schedule of fees:    ______________________ 
 
 Yes    No   Applicant has read, in its entirety, the City of Goldsboro Use of City-Owned Property for 

Special Events Policy. The Policy Regarding the Use of City-Owned Property for Special Events 
is available at http://www.goldsboronc.gov/special-events/. 
 

*The temporary closing of a NC Department of Transportation Street would be at the discretion of the NC    
  Department of Transportation.   
 

VI. Miscellaneous:  
Parking: 

• How will overall patron parking be accommodated for this event?        

           ______________   

Note:  You may be required to provide a shuttle if the event places undue demands on surrounding parking areas. 

   

 
 
 

30
10x10

100 - food trucks only 

public parking lots and spaces

http://www.goldsboronc.gov/special-events/


4 
August 2022 

Special Information and Conditions of receiving a Special Event/Parade Permit: 
 
Insurance: 

  

General Liability Insurance coverage of at least $1 million that holds the City and its taxpayers harmless from claims 
arising out of operation of the event. This Proof of insurance or applicable rider MUST be attached before submitting. 
Contact your insurance provider for assistance. If the event requires additional insurance, the Finance Director will 
notify the Police Department and City Manager’s Office. Some events, such as carnivals, require a minimum of $5 
million dollars in either general liability insurance or umbrella insurance coverage to be determined at the 
discretion of the city manager and shall be in place at the time such structure is to be occupied or such place of 
assembly is established for use by the public. The City shall be added as an additional insured on said policy 
for any and all relevant times to the operation and/or carnival presence.  
 
Application Fee: 
An application fee of $25.00 for special events and $50.00 for parades will be required at the time the application is 
submitted unless the permit is denied. This non-refundable fee is to be in the form of a check made payable to the 
City of Goldsboro.   
 
Event Cancellation: 
At this time, we do not anticipate canceling any events already permitted, however with ongoing national security 
concerns and the possible unavailability of city and police resources, this could occur. If this action is necessary, 
applicants will be given notice in a timely manner. New requests may be denied or adjusted for the same reason. 
 

Public Safety:  
The City of Goldsboro reserves the right to require security and medical personnel for your event. 
 

Police: The Goldsboro Police Department shall determine the number of police officers needed to appropriately 
manage security, as well as the time when such services shall commence.  The Applicant may be responsible for 
hiring and paying off-duty law enforcement officers, or reimbursing the City of Goldsboro for the costs of providing on-
duty law enforcement officers, to appropriately manage the event. Please contact the City of Goldsboro’s Police 
Department Off-Duty Coordinator at 919-580-4223.  

 

Prohibited Items: 
No firearms or illegal drugs are allowed. 
 

Policy of Non-Discrimination: 
City facilities are available on a non-discriminatory basis. Appropriate activities need to accommodate individuals 
regardless of age, sex, race, color, religion, national origin, physical or mental disabilities, affection preference or 
marital status. The City of Goldsboro does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission, access, treatment 
or employment in its programs or activities. 
 

Additional Rules Pertaining to Events: 
1. Vehicles will only be in designated parking areas.  
2. All animals must be leashed as outlined in COG Code of Ordinances 91.15;91.18.  
3. Applicant will respect neighboring property/business owners with respect to noise. 
4. Applicant understands that it will not be the responsibility of the Police Department to relocate vehicles parked 

along any portions of the streets to be closed prior to the event. 
5. Applicant is required to ensure the areas used are clean and free of debris.  Please note that there will be a 

cleaning fee charged if the area is not clean.  
 

Alcoholic Beverages: 
(If consumption of alcohol is planned on property for event, the following additional requirements MUST be met.)  

1. All necessary ABC permits must be issued by the State and copies are provided with this application. 
2. Signs shall be posted and visible at all exit points at the special event stating that it is unlawful to remove 

alcoholic beverages in opened or sealed containers from the premises. 
3. Areas where alcohol will be consumed, served or sold must clearly be defined and delineated on the premises 

by barricades, caution tape or other acceptable means. 



5 
August 2022 

4. All necessary ABC permits must be issued by the State and copies provided with this application. Follow steps 
outlined at www.abc.nc.gov/permits. 

5. Off-duty law enforcement officers are required to be on-site if alcohol is present at the event. The number of 
officers required will be determined by the Goldsboro Police Department.   

 
** Submitting this Special Event/Parade Permit Application does not provide permission to conduct your 
planned event. Please do not send out publicity, flyers, or other media prior to receiving confirmation of 
approval. Your confirmation will be in the form of a Permit, issued to the organization and/or person 
responsible for conducting the event.  
 
**For street closing applications: the Goldsboro Police Department will notify the applicant when the 
Goldsboro City Council has approved the permit.  

 
Agreement 
 

I have read and understand this application and the requirements placed upon this applicant and organization. I 
agree to abide by the City of Goldsboro rules, regulations and ordinances should my permit application be 
approved.  I will fulfill the requirements placed upon this permit application.  
 
Authorized Signature:        Date:      

Organization:               

 
Please return this application and all supporting documentation by email, mail or in person to:  
Goldsboro Police Department  
Community Police Services        
204 S. Center Street 
Goldsboro, NC 27530    
spowers@goldsboronc.gov 

CANCELLATION POLICY: Written notification of intent to cancel your event must be received in writing a minimum 
of 21 days prior to the scheduled event date to Sgt. Steven Powers at spowers@goldsboronc.gov. 

 
For Inner Office Use Only: 
 
 
________________________________________ __________________ 
Goldsboro Police Department Representative  Date  

 
________________________________________ __________________ 
Downtown Goldsboro Representative    Date 

 
____________________________________ ________________ 
Public Works Department Representative  Date 

 
________________________________________ __________________ 
Parks and Recreation Department Representative  Date 

 
____________________________________ ________________ 
Finance Director      Date 

 
____________________________________ ________________ 
City Manager’s Signature     Date  
(Use of City Owned Lots/Non-Street Closings and Carnivals)  

10/10/2022

City of Goldsboro - Downtown Development 

10/10/2022

http://www.abc.nc.gov/permits
mailto:spowers@goldsboronc.gov


6 
August 2022 

                    

 

 

                  Special Event Release of Liability Waiver 

The undersigned person is applying for Use of City-Owned Property for Special Event on behalf of                                              

  from the City of Goldsboro and hereby agrees to indemnify 

and hold the City of Goldsboro, its officers, agents and employees harmless from all claims, liabilities, demands, 

expenses, of any nature or kind, expresses or implied, whether sounding in tort or in contract that may be asserted 

against the City, its officials, agents and employees by any person, firm, or corporation, that may arise out of any 

acts or omissions, active or passive, related to operating an event on the city’s property. 

This the      day of                                            , 20_______. 

 

        (SEAL) 

                                                  (Applicant & Authorized Representative of Event) 

 

This form must be completed, signed and returned with the completed application. 

 

  

COG Downtown Development

10 October 22



N









O











P



G0 -air. LDS B0RO
BE MORE DO MORE SEYMOUR

North Carolina

200 North Center Street, 27530

RESOLUTION 2022- 107 P 919. 580. 4362

CELEBRATING THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO' S

175TH ANNIVERSARY

WHEREAS, 2022 marks the 175th
anniversary of the incorporation of the City of

Goldsboro; and

WHEREAS, the 175th anniversary is an appropriate time to reflect on and celebrate the
remarkable history of the City of Goldsboro, while looking toward the future; and

WHEREAS, Major Matthew T. Goldsborough surveyed the right of way for the new railroad
line in 1836; and

WHEREAS, the first train came through February 23, 1838, with great celebration, and
general approval to name the area Goldsborough; and

WHEREAS, the town of Goldsborough was incorporated on January 18, 1847; and

WHEREAS, Seymour Johnson Air Force Base has been an integral part of Goldsboro' s

history since 1942; and

WHEREAS, the City provides services, promotes equality, and protects the well- being of
all residents and visitors to enhance our quality of life every day; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro City Council and City staff are thankful for citizens that are
active and involved in the community; and

WHEREAS, as a thank you to the community for making Goldsboro a great place to live, 
work and play, an event to commemorate the 175th

anniversary of Goldsboro will take place
at the Goldsboro Event Center on November 19, 2022. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina that we recognize and acknowledge our rich history and look
forward to the future with hope for prosperity. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, 
and shall be in full force and effect from and after this 7th day of November, 2022. 

r

avid Ham

Mayor

www.goldsboronc. gov



Item Q



Item R



Item S


	Agenda 11-07-22
	ws item a - FY 21-22 Financial Update 11-07-22_3 (CFG 10-31-22)
	Slide Number 1
	General Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	General Fund Collections�     FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual
	Stormwater Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)�and�Budget to Actual FY2021-22
	Utility Fund – Collections�Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	Utility Fund Collections�FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual
	Downtown MSD & �Occupancy Tax Collections �Comparison Actual Current and Prior (unaudited)
	Downtown MSD & �Occupancy Tax Collections�FY 2021-22 Budget to Actual
	    Actual Collections	�Comparison Actual Current & Prior (unaudited)
	Summary – �FY2021-22 Budget to Actual Expenditures 
	     Fund Balance Appropriations�    FY 2021-22
	FY2021-22 Net Operating Results�(Modified Accrual - unaudited)
	 

	ws item b1 - GOLDSBORO GOLF COURSE CART FLEET PROPOSAL... 2
	GOLDSBORO GOLF COURSE & �EVENT CENTER�
	GOLF CART FLEET PROPOSAL
	WHAT WE HAVE Done SO FAR 
	The effect of golf cart fees on Revenue
	act NOW
	CURRENT DILEMMA
	options
	Current fleet
	Current fleet
	Slide Number 10
	SAMSUNG LITHIUM: Proven results
	Goldsboro Golf Course Fleet Cars
	Additional needs
	THANK YOU

	ws item b2 - SUPPORTING CALCULATIONS TO HELP WEIGH THE LITHIUM VS GAS CARTS
	ws item d - MCPD COUNCIL PRESENTATION 2022
	MCPD
	WHAT IS THE MCPD?
	WHAT DOES THE MCPD DO?
	WE EDUCATE�
	We Advocate
	Hal K. Plonk Disability Walk
	MCPD Annual Awards�
	Making Strides for Inclusivity 
	MCPD�The Mayor’s Committee for Person’s With Disabilities 

	ws item e - Nov. 7th GYC Council Report Presentation
	Goldsboro mayor’s youth council�
	Gyc membership�2022-2023
	EXECUTIVE BOARD
	�November 2021�
	Slide Number 5
	Gift wrapping @ 
	MLK 2022 at PARAMOUNT THEATRE 
	MLK 2022 at PARAMOUNT THEATRE 
	 BAGS FOR BLANKETS�Launched 2021�
	Career day �Rep. john bell 
	Softball tournament @ sjafb 
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	  Taste of wayne 2022
	YOUTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY�N.C. GENERAL ASSEMBLY
	Spring convention   Pullen Park�April 2022  
	GYC 2022 GRADUATES
	Gyc local…
	STAY TUNED TO WHAT WE’RE DOING!

	ws item f - GPD Homeless Panhandling Updated 3
	Slide Number 1
	Homeless Locations
	2600-2700 Royall Avenue Encampment
	2600-2700 Royall Avenue Encampment
	2400 Royall Avenue Encampment
	Crime Mapping
	Homeless & Police Response
	Trespass Agreements
	Challenges for Homeless
	Panhandling Ordinance
	Panhandling Ordinance
	Panhandling Ordinance
	Panhandling Ordinance
	Panhandling Ordinance
	Homeless & Panhandling Discussion

	ws item h - Proposed Council Meeting Schedule 2023
	Item A Minutes 10-17-22
	Item C1 - Magnolia Grove
	Item C2
	Item D1 - Z-20-22
	Item D2
	Item E1 - Z-21-22
	Item E2
	Item F1 - Z-22-22
	Item F2
	Item G1 - UDO-1-22
	Item G2
	Item H - North State
	Item I - Ash Street Grant
	Item J - P&R Grant
	Item K - Intent to Purchase using Procurement Exception
	Item L1 - SJAFB MAA - Memo & RES
	Item L2 - SJAFB MAA
	Item M - Agenda Memo 2022 Downtown Lights UP! - Temporary Street Closure
	Item M2 - Downtown Lights Up 2022 Application
	Type of Event: (please check all that apply)
	Address:            ______
	For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- FORMATION AREA LOCATION:   _______
	For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnivals- STARTING POINT:   ________
	For Run/Walk/Parade/Carnival- ENDING POINT:        ______
	This form must be completed, signed and returned with the completed application.

	Item N - SU-12-22
	Item O - Annexation Petition - Harry and Mollie
	Item P - 175th RES
	Item Q - Veterans Day Proclamation 2022
	Item R - Small Biz Saturday 2022
	Item S - Lung Cancer Proclamation 2022
	ADPEA2D.tmp
	Sheet1

	Agency Requests FY23_8-15-22 Avg.pdf
	FY22-23




